



Reference Guide

MIMAKI ENGINEERING CO., LTD.

https://mimaki.com/

D203660-13

Contents

6
7
7
7
7

Chapter 1 About CAMLINK2

1.1 Features of CAMLINK2	10
1.2 System Requirements	11
1.3 DXF Versions	12
1.4 When Inheriting from CAMLINK	13

Chapter 2 Before Use

2.1 Installation	16
2.2 License Activation	19
Activation from the [License activation] menu	20
When using a proxy server	21
Activation from the license webpage	22
Creating the activation file	22
Issuing a license key	24
Loading a license key file	25
When the CAMLINK2 computer has no internet access	28
2.3 Screen Structure	29
2.4 Coordinate Panel	30
Base point panel	32
[Set the Point] panel > [Point] tab	32
[Set the Point] panel > [Base Point] tab	33
2.5 Origin	34
2.6 Environment setup defaults	35
Configuring the environment	35
[Environment Setup] > [Plotter] tab	36
[Environment Setup] > [Communication] tab	37
[Environment Setup] > [Other] tab	40
2.7 Starting CAMLINK2	41
Opening saved figures	41
Opening files	41
Importing additional files	41
2.8 Quitting CAMLINK2	42
Saving figures	42
Saving as new	42
Overwriting files	42
Closing figures	43
2.9 Checking or Changing the Current Model	44
Checking the current plotter	44
Changing the current plotter	45
2.10 How to Use the Cutting Condition Migration Tool	46

Chapter 3 Cutting

3.1 Process of Cutting	48
3.2 Importing Cut Data (DXF Files)	50
Reading in multi-text	50
[Read DXF] > [Option] tab	51
3.3 Registering Blades	52
[Blade] tab	53
Compensating for overcutting	54
3.4 Registering Cut Condition Names	55
3.5 Setting Cut Conditions	56
Cut Condition > [Base Setting] tab	59
List of available tools	60
Repeated cutting ([Z Position] setting)	61
Cut Condition > [Detail Setting] tab	62
Cut Condition > [Milling] tab	66
Cut thickness with [Joint Setting] configured	70
About hatching method	72
Cut Condition > [V Cut] tab	73
3.6 Setting Up Layers	75
Layer Setting	76
If registration marks have not been placed on the intended layer	78
3.7 Checking a Preview	79
Preview	81
3.8 Sending to a Plotter	83
Plotter Out	83
Edge Detect	86
Register Mark Setting	87

Chapter 4 Basic Operations

4.1 Selecting Shapes/Canceling Selection	. 90
4.2 Editing Functions	. 91
Moving shapes	. 91
Creating linked copies of shapes/canceling linkage	. 92
Rotating shapes	. 95
Horizontally or vertically flipping (mirroring) shapes	. 96
Resizing shapes	. 96
Creating multiple copies of shapes	. 98
Grouping/ungrouping shapes	. 99
Disassembling shapes	100
Entering comments	100
Moving shapes to other layers	102
Grouping by layers	102
Doubleline check	103
4.3 Showing/canceling the grid	104
4.4 Setting Up work space	105

Chapter 5 Applied Functions

5.1 Checking/Changing the Output Order	108
Changing/resetting grouped shape output order	108
Changing line segment output order	109
5.2 Line functions	110
Changing line cutting direction	110
Dividing line segments	111
Changing the cutting start position	112
5.3 Automatic generation of cut conditions for times cut	113
Set up automatic generation of cutting conditions	113
5.4 Shape/size of registration marks	117
5.5 Cutting printed works (data with registration marks)	118
Process of cutting data with registration marks	118
Detecting registration marks	120
If registration marks cannot be detected	121
5.6 Using freely placeable marks to cut	122
5.7 Reverse cutting of printed works (data with registration mark	s)
	124
5.8 Edge detection	129
Scenarios where edge detection is used	129
Edge detection and surface cutting using data without registration	
marks	129
5.9 V-Cutting	131
5.10 Milling	135
5.11 Toggle Cutting	138

Chapter 6 Function Explanation

6.1 File(&F) Menu	144
6.2 Edit(&E) Menu	145
6.3 View(&V) Menu	147
6.4 Output(&O) Menu	148
6.5 Setup(&S) Menu	149
6.6 Window(&W) Menu	150
Changing how windows are displayed	150
6.7 Help(&H) Menu	152

Chapter 7 Troubleshooting

7.1 Troubleshooting by case example	154
Files cannot be imported, or the database cannot be opened	154
CAMLINK2 does not start	154
Cannot send data to a plotter	154
Forgot to deactivate the license	154
Lost the serial key	154
7.2 How to deactivate the license if the computer fails	155

7.3 Uninstallation	156
Deactivating the license	156
Deactivation from the [License activation] menu	156
When the CAMLINK2 computer has no internet access	157
Uninstallation	160

Introduction

Thank you for purchasing CAMLINK2.

Read this reference guide (hereinafter, "this guide" or "this manual") thoroughly and make sure you understand it to ensure correct use of your Mimaki product.

- Any unauthorized use or reproduction, in part or whole, of this guide is strictly prohibited.
- The information in this guide may be subject to change without notice in the future.
- Details pertaining to specifications in this guide may differ due to improvements made to this software.
- Copying the Mimaki Engineering Co. Ltd. software described in this guide to other disks (except for backup purposes) or loading it to memory except for the purpose of running it, is strictly prohibited.
- With the exception of what is provided in the warranty provisions, Mimaki Engineering Co. Ltd. does not
 assume any liability for any damage (including, but not limited to, the loss of profit, indirect damage,
 special damage, or other monetary damages) resulting from the use or inability to use this product. The
 same shall apply in cases where Mimaki Engineering Co. Ltd. has been notified of the possibility of
 damages. As an example, we shall not be liable for the loss of any work made by using this product or
 for any indirect loss caused by a product made with such work.

CAMLINK2 is a trademark or a registered trademark of Mimaki Engineering Co. Ltd. in Japan and other countries.

Microsoft, Windows, Windows 10, and Windows 11 are trademarks or registered trademarks of Microsoft Corporation in the United States and other countries.

AutoCAD and DXF are trademarks or registered trademarks of Autodesk, Inc.

Adobe and Illustrator are trademarks or registered trademarks of Adobe Inc. in the United States and other countries.

CorelDRAW is a trademark or registered trademark of Corel Corporation in Canada, the United States, and other countries.

DraftBoard and DesignFreeQ are trademarks or registered trademarks of Shark Designer Ltd. in Japan.

Other company names and product names described in this guide are trademarks or registered trademarks of their respective owners.

About This Manual

This manual describes the following:

- Installation and settings for using CAMLINK2
- Instructions for using CAMLINK2

Notation in the manual

• On-screen buttons and menu items are enclosed in brackets, as in [OK] or [Open].

Symbols

	Description		
(Important!)	Important	The "Important" symbol represents information you must be familiar with when using CAMLINK2.	
	Tip	The "Tip" symbol represents useful information to know.	
(CFF	Reference information	Indicates a reference page with related information. Click on the reference to display the corresponding page.	
	General compulsory instructions	Indicates actions that must be performed.	
\bigcirc	General prohibitions	Indicates actions that must not be performed. The specific details of the prohibited action are indicated in the pictogram.	

How to Obtain This Guide and Related Manuals

The latest versions of this guide and related manuals are available at the following URL:

https://mimaki.com/download/software.html

Chapter 1 About CAMLINK2



This chapter

This chapter summarizes CAMLINK2 and provides introductory information.

Features of CAMLINK210	DXF Versions12
System Requirements11	When Inheriting from CAMLINK13

1.1 Features of CAMLINK2

CAMLINK2 software is designed specifically for the cutting of thick material.

See ("System Requirements" (P. 11) for details on compatible OSes and recommended computer environments.

Database storage of cutting conditions

Configured cutting conditions are stored in a database and can be used with other works.

Optimal processing for small shapes

Can automatically switch to another tool for output of shapes that are too small to cut.

• Layouts to fit the work

Shapes can be laid out to fit the work, enabling effective use of works. (P. 105)

• Customizable shape cutting order

Cutting order can be specified. (AP "Changing/resetting grouped shape output order"(P. 108) The cutting order can also be checked on the screen. (AP "Checking a Preview"(P. 79)

Automatic database backup

With database backup enabled, the database is automatically backed up when you quit CAMLINK2. "[Environment Setup] > [Other] tab"(P. 40)

Detection of registration marks

Registration marks can be detected, which enables continuous cutting of multi-copied shapes, or shapes arranged in the same position on multiple works. ("Cutting printed works (data with registration marks)"(P. 118) (Using freely placeable marks to cut"(P. 122)

• V-cutting

Folding lines can be created on cardboard or other thick works. Crisp edges can also be created, using a V-cutting tool. (V-Cutting"(P. 131)

• Cutting of works not compatible with cutters

This enables machining of acrylic, aluminum composite panels, channel boards, and other material. "Milling"(P. 135)

1.2 System Requirements

The following OSes can be used.

- Microsoft[®] Windows 10[®] Pro (64-bit)
- Microsoft[®] Windows 10[®] Enterprise (64-bit)
- Microsoft[®] Windows 11[®] Home
- Microsoft[®] Windows 11[®] Pro

• Recommended computer environment

The following system environment is recommended.

OS	Windows [®] 10 Pro 64-bit
CPU	Intel [®] Core [™] i5 or higher recommended
Chipset	Intel chipset
Memory	At least 8 GB
Hard disk	At least 10 GB of free disk space
Interface	RS-232C, Ethernet port* ¹ , USB 2.0

*1. Always connect via Ethernet when using a tool's automatic detection or CMOS camera functionality.

If our company's software does not operate correctly in the operating environment listed, it may be due to the version of OS/browser, etc.
 If you are using an older version of OS/browser, etc., we recommend updating your environment to the latest version to use.

1.3 DXF Versions

Cutting by CAMLINK2 is based on DXF data. Note that some DXF files cannot be used, depending on the version in which they were saved.

• DXF file versions

DXF version		Applicat	tion used to save I	OXF files	
	AutoCAD 2024	Adobe Illustrator	CorelDRAW	DraftBoard	DesignFreeQ
2018	0	0	Х	Х	Х
2013	0	0	Х	Х	X
2010	0	0	Х	Х	Х
2007	0	0	0	Х	Х
2004	0	0	0	Х	Х
2000	0	0	0	0	0

*1. O: supported, X: not supported

• The DXF file format data prepared in Adobe Illustrator does not read arc data, ellipse data, and spline data correctly.

1.4 When Inheriting from CAMLINK

• Transferring cut conditions

If you are using one of the following plotters, you can inherit the cut conditions in CAMLINK2.

- CF2 Series
- CFL-605RT
- CF22 Series

• Cautions when reading DXF

The [Read DXF] function in CAMLINK2 is configured to import layer information from DXF files by default. With this setting, colors set for cut lines are ignored. When importing DXF cut in CAMLINK, we recommend setting the DXF reading criteria to [Color].

Timporting Cut Data (DXF Files)"(P. 50)

Chapter 2 Before Use



This chapter

This chapter describes CAMLINK2 installation, screen layouts, and database registration before you begin using the software.

Installation	16
License Activation	19
Activation from the [License activation] m	nenu
	20
When using a proxy server	21
Activation from the license webpage	22
Creating the activation file	22
Issuing a license key	24
Loading a license key file	25
When the CAMLINK2 computer has no	
internet access	28
Screen Structure	29
Coordinate Panel	30
Base point panel	32
[Set the Point] panel > [Point] tab	32
[Set the Point] panel > [Base Point] tab	33
Origin	34
Environment setup defaults	35

Configuring the environment	35
[Environment Setup] > [Plotter] tab	36
[Environment Setup] > [Communication]	tab
	37
[Environment Setup] > [Other] tab	40
Starting CAMLINK2	41
Opening saved figures	41
Opening files	41
Importing additional files	41
Quitting CAMLINK2	42
Saving figures	42
Saving as new	42
Overwriting files	42
Closing figures	43
Checking or Changing the Current Model	44
Checking the current plotter	44
Changing the current plotter	45
How to Use the Cutting Condition Migration	Tool 46

2.1 Installation

Download the installer and install CAMLINK2 as follows.



1

• Install the software as a user with administrator privileges.

• An internet connection is required in order to install CAMLINK2. Contact your local distributor, our sales office, or service center.

Download the CAMLINK2 installer from the Mimaki website.

https://mimaki.com/download/software.html



2 Double-click the downloaded exe file, which is a self-extracting file.

 The installation screen will be displayed automatically after the CAMLINK2 installer is extracted to the desktop.



• If the installation screen does not appear automatically, double-click [CDMenu.exe] in the extracted folder.

3 Click [Install].



 The Microsoft .NET Framework installer will launch if .NET Framework has not been installed. Install .NET Framework first.

4 Click [Next].



5 Select [I accept the terms of the license agreement] and click [Next].



6 Click [Install] to start the installation process.





7 Click [Complete] to complete installation.



8 Click [X] or [Exit] in the upper right to close the installation screen.





• After installation, do not change, delete or rename the installation folder or files that were installed.

2.2 License Activation

To continue using CAMLINK2, the license needs activating. Activation requires the computer on which CAMLINK2 is installed to be connected to the internet.



The license activation process uses the information from Ethernet equipment as hardware configuration information of the PC.

- Do not disable the Ethernet equipment that is enabled upon license activation. Even if you switch between a wired and wireless connection, keep the equipment previously used active.
- · If you use a PPP-connected or USB-connected network device, enable Ethernet equipment.
- In license activation, the serial key and the information to identify the CAMLINK2 computer (generated automatically from computer hardware configuration information) are sent to Mimaki Engineering.
 - The software can be used for 30 days from the first startup, which is the trial period, without activating the license. Activate the license during the trial period to continue using CAMLINK2 after the trial period ends.

• Where you can find the serial key

The serial key is found on the inside of the package lid.



• Activating the license

The license can be activated as follows. The activation method varies depending on the computer environment.

- · On a computer connected to the internet
 - CP "Activation from the [License activation] menu"(P. 20)
 - CP "Activation from the license webpage"(P. 22)
- On a computer not connected to the internet
 - CP "When the CAMLINK2 computer has no internet access"(P. 28)

Activation from the [License activation] menu

Activation

From the Windows [Start] menu, select [All apps] > CAMLINK2] > [License Activation].

• The license can also be activated from the [Activation] screen that appears on initial startup of CAMLINK2.

2 Select [Activate] and click [Next].

• If using a proxy server, this will need configuring. (CP "When using a proxy server"(P. 21)

Welcome to Mimaki Web Service	
Select activation option. Activate (Activate via the Internet) Activate later. Internet access option Substitute activation.	
Next Cancel	

3 Configure the settings and click [Next].

Please fill-in form	your information. 1
Serialkey 🛛 🔍	F RIM DOG RH MOL LONG
User ID(E-mail addres	ss) taro.mimaki@mimaki.com
Company Name	MIMAKI ENGINEERING CO, LTD
Division Name 🤈	Technical Department
Address	2182–3 Shişeno–Otsu, Tomi–city, Naşano
Plotter	OFX .
	Please fill-in the plotter to use with CAMLINK2.

- Enter the serial key, which you can find on the inside of the package lid. The "License Activation" (P. 19)
- (2) Fill in any of the fields as required.
- (3) Read the privacy policy at the following URL, then select the [Agree with our privacy policy] check box.
 - https://mimaki.com/privacy.html
 - You need to agree with the privacy policy before [Next] is enabled. Click [Next] to start the activation process.



4 Click [Complete] to complete license activation.

Activation	-	×
Activate your product		_
Product successfully activated.		
Finish		

When using a proxy server

1 Click	(Internet	Option].
---------	-----------	----------

Activation		-	
Welcome to Mimaki Web	o Service		
Select activation option.			
 Activate (Activate via the Internet) 			
⊖ Activate later.			
Internet access option Substitute activation			
	Next		Dancel

2 Configure the settings and click [OK].

ky server setting	
○ Do not use proxy	server
Use proxy server	
Address	
Port	8080
🗌 Use Account	
User Name	
Password	

Activation from the license webpage

- **1** Create an activation file.
 - Creating the activation file"(P. 22)
- **2** Activate the license.
 - (2) "Issuing a license key"(P. 24)
- **3** Load the license key file.
 - CP "Loading a license key file"(P. 25)

Creating the activation file

- From the Windows [Start] menu, select [All apps] > CAMLINK2] > [License Activation].
- **2** Click [Substitute activation].

Activation	-	
Welcome to Mimaki Web Service		
Select activation option.		
Activate		
Activate later.		
Internet access option Substitute activation		
Next		Cancel

3 Select [Create an activation file for substitute activation].

🤣 Activation	-		
Welcome to Mimaki Web Service			
Activate your product			
			٦
Select the operation of substitute activation.			
Create a activation file for substitute activation.	Browse		
O Input file neme of the substitute activated license key file.	Browse	l	
Back Next		Cancel	

Activation – – ×
Welcome to Mimaki Web Service
Activate your product
Select the operation of substitute activation.
Back Next Cancel

5 Specify a storage location and enter a name for the file to save.

	« Documents > License	v č	P Search Lice	nse
ganize 🔻 🛛 Ne	w folder			8:: •
This PC	^ Name	^	Date modified	Туре
3D Objects		No items match	your search	
Desktop		No items match	your search.	
1 Documents				
Developede				
Downloads				
Music	~ <			
Music	< <			

6 Click [Save].

7 Click [Next].

Select the operation of substitute activation.
Create a activation file for substitute activation. C#Users¥admin¥Documents¥License¥Activation.xml Browss
O Input file neme of the substitute activated license key file. Erowse

8 Configure the settings and click [Next].

Please fill-in form you	ur information. 1
Serialkey	In the second second
User ID(E-mail address)	taro.mimaki@mimaki.com
Company Name	MIMAKI ENGINEERING CO.,LTD
Division Name 2	Technical Department
Address	2182-3 Shegeno-Otsu, Tomi-city, Nagano
Plotter	CFX
	Please fill-in the plotter to use with CAMLINK2.

- Enter the serial key, which you can find on the inside of the package lid. I License Activation"(P. 19)
- (2) Fill in any of the fields as required.
- (3) Read the privacy policy at the following URL, then select the [Agree with our privacy policy] check box.
 - https://mimaki.com/privacy.html
 - You need to agree with the privacy policy before [Next] is enabled. Click [Next] to start the
 activation process.
- **G** Click [Complete].

Activation	e to Mimaki Web Service	-	×
Activation Please acc and activat	Ne has been successfully created, ess the Web License Page on internet browsable PC, e with this activation file to create license key file.		
	Finish		

Issuing a license key

Access the following URL to display the activation page.

http://miws.mimaki.jp/license/agencytop.aspx

(montant) • Clicking the URL may display a PDF security warning. If this happens, click [Allow].

2	Click [Activation].	
	Activat	ion
	If you h Activati	ave the activation file by Substitute License on.
		Activation
	Deactiv	ation
	Deactiv	ation.
		Deactivation
	Deactiv	ation (When the PC broken)
	Can not RasterL	deactivation because the PC running ink/MPM/Simple POP is broken.
	(Wh	Deactivation en the PC broken)
•		
3	Click [Select File].	
	Please se Choose	lect the activation file created on RasterLink/MPM/Simple POP. File No file chosen
		Get license key
4	Select the license activation	file created and click [Open].
	• Creating the activation	file"(P. 22)
	C Op	
	Orga	ize ▼ New folder
		Dispect Name Date meathed type 3D Objects []] Activation.aml 8/29/2023.845 AM 30.40
	4	Decuments Develoads v c >>
		hit game Activation.xml Altitis (*?) Cancel
5	Click [Get license key].	
	 The license key file is saved 	to the downloads folder.
	Please se Choose	ect the activation file created on RasterLink/MPM/Simple POP.
		iet license key

6 Copy the saved license key file to any location on the CAMLINK2 computer.

Loading a license key file

1 From the Windows [Start] menu, select [All apps] > CAMLINK2] > [License Activation].

2	Click	[Substitute	activation].
---	-------	-------------	--------------

Activation		- 🗆 X
Welcome to Mimaki W	eb Service	
Activate your product		
Select activation option.		
 Activate (Activate via the Internet) 		
◯ Activate later.		
Internet access ontion		
Substitute activation.		
	Next	Cancel

3 Select [Input file name of the substitute activated license key file].

Select the operation of substitute activation.
Create a activation file for substitute activation. C:#Users#admin#Documents#License#Activation.xml Erowse
Input file neme of the substitute activated license key file. Browse

4 Click [Browse].

Welc	ome to Mimaki Web Service			
Activat	e your product			
	Select the operation of substitute activation.			
	O Create a activation file for substitute activation. C#Users¥admin¥Documents¥License¥Activation.xml	Browse		
	Input file neme of the substitute activated license key file.	Browse		
	Back Next	C	ancel	

5 Select the issued license key file and click [Open].

• @ "Issuing a license key"(P. 24)



6 Click [Next].

Activation	×
Welcome to Mimaki Web Service	
Activate your product	
Select the operation of substitute activation.	
O Create a activation file for substitute activation.	
	Browse
Input file neme of the substitute activated license key file.	
C#Users¥admin¥Documents¥License¥LicenseKay.xml	Browse
Back Next	Cancel

7 Click [Complete].

Welcome to Mimaki Web Service		
Activate your product		
Product successfully activated.		
Finish		

When the CAMLINK2 computer has no internet access

- **1** Use the CAMLINK2 computer to create an activation file.
 - Creating the activation file"(P. 22)
- **2** Copy the activation file to a computer with internet access.



3 Activate the license.

- (2) "Issuing a license key"(P. 24)
- **C** Copy the license key file to the CAMLINK2 computer.

5 Load the license key file.

• CP "Loading a license key file"(P. 25)

2.3 Screen Structure



No	ltem	Description
1	Menu bar	Shows menu commands. 🐲 "File(&F) Menu"(P. 144)
2	Toolbar	Shows frequently used functions as icons. (Ref "File(&F) Menu"(P. 144)
3	Editing screen	 Screen for importing and editing DXF files. The origin varies depending on the plotter. The active working space (maximum plotting size of the current model) is outlined in green. Grid mark (upper left): G is shown when the grid is set and F when it is not. If Showing/canceling the grid"(P. 104) Rulers (top and left): Used as a layout guide. Labeled in millimeters. Scroll bars: The vertical scroll bar is used to scroll (move) the screen up or down, and the horizontal one, left and right. Within the active working space, Zoom In by scrolling up on the mouse wheel and Zoom Out by scrolling down.
4	Message area	Shows a brief description and instructions for the selected command.
5	Coordinate display	Indicates the current mouse pointer coordinates. When importing cut data (in a DXF file), to specify base point and placement position coordinates for the imported shape, click before confirming the placement position to display a coordinate dialog box, then enter the coordinates. It is also possible to access this dialog box by selecting the function enabling setting of coordinates, then pressing [Alt]+[A].
6	Window buttons on the figure	 Minimize button: Minimizes the window. Maximize button: Maximizes the window. Close button: Closes the window.

2.4 Coordinate Panel

Enables entry of placement coordinates when specifying shape origins or duplicating shapes.

- · Coordinates can be entered for the following operations.
 - When importing DXF files or additional files Importing Cut Data (DXF Files)"(P. 50)
 - When moving shapes, creating linked copies, or rotating shapes (P. 91) (P. 91) (P. 92) (P. 92) (P. 92) (P. 95)
 - When resizing shapes (P. 96)
 - When entering comments ("Entering comments" (P. 100)
 - When specifying work shapes/sizes I "Setting Up work space" (P. 105)
 - When specifying points to move the screen

• Figure base point and maximum frame

The base point of a selected figure is based on its maximum frame.

In the following figure, the maximum frame is indicated by a dotted line.

The arrow below indicates the base point when it is set as the lower left point in the coordinate panel.



Entering coordinates

For reference when entering coordinates in the coordinate panel, see below for the directions of X and Y coordinates. (P. 34)

• Specifying base point positions

Specify where to set the base points of shapes you are arranging, and then enter the coordinates.

First, select a position on the shape as the base point in [Base Point]. After this, enter the base point's X and Y coordinates.



X and Y coordinates are automatically shown for the selected [Base Point], whether clicking one of the four corners or the center point.

• Specifying placement positions

To enter coordinates for moving or copying figures, use the [Point] tab in the following dialog box.

To specify the base point position for this placement, click the [Base Point] tab.



• Specify the placement position after specifying the base point of the shape to move or copy.

• Specifying relative positions

To arrange shapes by entering relative coordinates, select [Set as relative point] in the coordinate dialog box. Enter relative values in X and Y directions.

The shape is moved or copied by a distance from the original base point position corresponding to the entered relative value.



Accessing the base point panel

Before copying, moving, or resizing shapes, set their original base points.

- Select a shape.
 - Composition Concerning Selection"(P. 90)
- **2** Select an editing function (move, link copy, etc.).

3 Click the coordinate values near the middle of bottom of the screen.

• The base point panel is displayed.



• You can also access the base point panel by pressing [Alt]+[A].

• Accessing the point input panel

Enter the X and Y coordinates according to the values entered for the base point.

Set the base point in the base point panel.

• (P. 32) "Base point panel"

2 Click the coordinate values near the middle of bottom of the screen.

The point input ([Set the Point]) panel will appear.
 "[Set the Point] panel > [Point] tab"(P. 32)
 "[Set the Point] panel > [Base Point] tab"(P. 33)

You can also access the point input panel by pressing [Alt]+[A].

Base point panel

Used to set a base point for editing functions (move, copy, etc.).

Either set the base point coordinates or select a base point in [Base Point].



No.	ltem	Description
1	X (mm)	Enter the X-coordinate of the base point.
2	Y (mm)	Enter the Y-coordinate of the base point.
3	Base Point	Select the base point, based on the maximum shape frame. *1

*1. Numbers 4–8 in the figure correspond to shape base point positions.

[Set the Point] panel > [Point] tab

Set the coordinates, based on the origin. The base point set on the [Base Point] tab is arranged accordingly.

The coordinate origin (0, 0) is the lower-right or lower-left corner (depending on the plotter, "Origin"(P. 34)) of the green frame indicating the active working space.

Point Base Point	
1 ×	<u>D</u>
2 y.	0
3 ☐ Save Offset va	lue
ок	Cancel

No.	Item	Description			
1	X (mm)	Enter the X-coordinate for shape placement.			
2	Y (mm)	Enter the Y-coordinate for shape placement.			
3	Save Offset value	[X] and [Y] coordinates are saved and shown as the initial panel coordinate values the next time a DXF file is imported.			

Example: When a DXF file is imported

[Set the Point] panel > [Base Point] tab

Specify the reference (base point) position used for shape placement. Can be set at any corner or in the center of the shape. ^{*1}



*1. Numbers 1–5 in the figure correspond to shape base point positions.

2.5 Origin

Origin X and Y directions vary depending on the plotter.



2.6 Environment setup defaults

From the Windows [Start] menu, select [All apps] > CAMLINK2] > [CAMLINK2].

- [Set the configuration] is displayed.
- 2 Click [OK].
 - CAMLINK2 starts up and the [Environment Setup] dialog box is displayed.
- **3** Configure the settings and click [OK].
 - Image: "Environment Setup] > [Plotter] tab"(P. 36)
 - Image: "[Environment Setup] > [Communication] tab"(P. 37)
 - Image: "[Environment Setup] > [Other] tab"(P. 40)

Configuring the environment

```
Configure environment settings when creating a new figure.
```



• ⁽²⁷⁾ "Closing figures"(P. 43)

 Immediately after CAMLINK2 start up, a new figure will open. Click the Close button in the top right to close the current figure.

- **2** From the CAMLINK2 menu bar, select [Setup(&S)] > [Environment(&V)].
 - The [Environment Setup] dialog box is displayed.

3 Configure the setting items.

- (Plotter] tab"(P. 36) (Plotter] tab"(P. 36)
- Image: "[Environment Setup] > [Communication] tab"(P. 37)
- (27 "[Environment Setup] > [Other] tab"(P. 40)

[Environment Setup] > [Plotter] tab



No.	ltem	Description
1	Default plotter	Select the plotter to use.
2	Active Working Space	 After selecting a plotter, its maximum active working space is indicated here. Your specified active working space is outlined in green when you open a figure. Values in [Active Working Space] do not set the actual cutting area. Change this area if a work jig or the like is used that reduces the effective cutting area. Click [Undo] to restore default values.
3	Z setting procedure	 Work top surface is 0: The top surface of the work is the basis. Tool Z-axis origin (0) Positive values Z Position Felt top surface is 0: The bottom surface of the work is the basis. Felt top surface is 0: The bottom surface of the work is the basis. Felt Tool Vork Positive values Z Position Negative values Z Position Negative values Z Position Negative values Z Position (0)
4	Origin	 Select an origin that matches the plotter settings. Select [Bottom Right] or [Bottom Left] when using mark detection. Origin is not displayed on models which do not have [Center]. Only [Bottom Right] and [Bottom Left] are available. – [Bottom Right] and [Bottom Left] setting items vary depending on the plotter origin (P 34)
[Environment Setup] > [Communication] tab

• Using a LAN cable

Connection Plotter	Not found port.	
IP Address		

No.	ltem	Description	
1	Plotter communication port	Select [LAN].	
2	Connection Plotter	Select the port connected to the plotter. f the plotter connection is not displayed, manually enter the plotter IP address. Select [IP Address] and enter the address. • To find the plotter IP address, refer to the plotter operation manual.	

• Using a serial cable

Environment Setup Plotter [Communication]] Miscellaneous		
1 Plotter communication port	Serial 💌	
2 Port	Not found port.	•
3 C 1200 C 2400 C 4800 C 9600 C 19200 C 38400	Stop bit (° 1 (° 15 (° 2 Data bits (° 7 (° 8	Parity ⓒ None ⓒ Odd ⓒ Even ✓ Use XON/XOFF parameters
OK Cancel		

No.	Item	Description	
1	Plotter communication port	Select [Serial].	
2	Port	Select the port connected to the plotter.	
3	Baud rate Stop bit Data bits Parity	Select each required setting item.For communication details, refer to the plotter operation manual.	

No.	Item	Description
	Use XON/XOFF parameters	

(montant) With the CFX Series, be sure to always select the [Use XON/XOFF parameters] check box.

• Using a USB cable

Environment Setup			
Plotter Communication	fiscellaneous		
1 Plotter communication	oort USB 💌		
2 Connection Plotter	Not found port.	•	
		1	
	OK	Cancel	

No.	ltem	Description
1	Plotter communication port	Select [USB].
2	Connection Plotter	 Select the plotter to use. If no available plotter is connected to the computer, the plotter will not be displayed. For details on how to connect the plotter, refer to the plotter operation manual.

[Environment Setup] > [Other] tab

Environment Setup			
Plotter Communication Miscellaneous			
$\begin{array}{c c} 1 & \text{-Setting for reading DXF} \\ \hline & \text{Allowable} & \hline 15 & \mu \text{ m} \\ \hline & \text{Point} & \hline 15 & \mu \text{ m} \\ \hline & \text{Collinear line interval} & \hline 15 & \mu \text{ m} \\ \hline & \text{Collinear angle} & \hline 1 & \delta \\ \end{array}$			
3-Menulcon Size			
4-Database Backup ☐ Enable			
Folder:			
OK			

No.	Item	Description	
1	Setting for reading DXF	 If the distance between line segment endpoints is less than or equal to the specified value, it is read as a connected line segment. 	
		– Default: 15 (μm)	
2	Setting for output* 1	Collinear line intervalIf the distance between line segment endpoints is less than or equal to the specified value, it is output as a connected line segment.	
		 Default: 10 (μm) Collinear line interval If the distance between line segment endpoints is less than or equal to the specified value, it is output as a connected line segment. 	
		– Default: 0 (deg)	
3	Menu icon size	Select the icon size in the toolbar.	
4	Database Backup	Automatically backs up the database (which is overwritten when you quit CAMLINK2). To back up the database manually, see (Setup(&S) Menu"(P. 149).	
	*1. When performing a [Link Copy] or [Multi Copy], the [Setting for Output] is not applied.		
Important	 The database contains essential data. Back it up regularly. We also recommend regular backup to removable media. 		

2.7 Starting CAMLINK2

From the Windows [Start] menu, select [All apps] > CAMLINK2] > [CAMLINK2].

· CAMLINK2 is started.

Opening saved figures

Open saved figures as follows (MDT2: proprietary CAMLINK2 format; (2) "Saving figures"(P. 42)).

Opening files

From the CAMLINK2 menu bar, select [File(&F)] > [Open(&O)].

- The [Open] dialog box is displayed.
- **2** Select a file and click [Open].

🗠 Open	×
← → × ↑ - CAMLINK2	✓ Ö Search CAMLINK2
Organize 🔻 New folder	III 🕶 🔟 💡
😤 Documents 🖈 ^ Name	Date modified Typ
GAMLINK2	9/2/2023 2:05 PM File
> OneDrive Sample.MDT2	9/2/2023 2:28 PM MD
> 💻 This PC 🗸 🗸	
File name: Sample.MDT2	CAMLINK2 (*.MDT2)
	<u>Open</u> Cancel

Importing additional files

Add figure data from other files to an open figure as follows.

From the CAMLINK2 menu bar, select [File(&F)] > [Load(&L)].

• The [Open] dialog box is displayed.

2 Select a file and click [Open].



- **3** Click a position to place the figure there, or use the coordinate panel ("Coordinate Panel" (P. 30)) to set the coordinates.
 - The position where you click is used as the base point for placement of the shape.

2.8 Quitting CAMLINK2

- **1** From the CAMLINK2 menu bar, select [File(&F)] > [Quit(&X)], or click the Close button in the upper right.
 - · CAMLINK2 is closed.

Saving figures

Save figures as follows. Figures are saved in an original CAMLINK2 format, MDT2.



• All editing data is saved, including your specified cut conditions and screen display colors.

Saving as new

- From the CAMLINK2 menu bar, select [File(&F)] > [Save As...(&A)].
 - The [Save As] dialog box is displayed.
- **2** Specify a destination folder and enter a file name.



3 Click [Save].

• The data is saved as a new file.

Overwriting files

From the CAMLINK2 menu bar, select [File(&F)] > [Save(&S)].

• The existing file is overwritten.

Closing figures

From the CAMLINK2 menu bar, select [File(&F)] > [Close(&C)], or click the Close button in the upper right above the figure.

A dialog box is displayed to confirm saving if you attempt to close an unsaved file.



1	Yes	 When saving as new: The [Save As] dialog box is displayed. Select a destination folder and enter a file name. Click [Save] to save the file and close the figure. When overwriting: The file is overwritten and the figure is closed.
2	No	The figure is closed without saving changes.
3	Cancel	Cancels closing the figure.

2.9 Checking or Changing the Current Model

You can check whether your plotter is selected and change the current plotter.

Checking the current plotter

- From the CAMLINK2 menu bar, select [Setup(&S)] > [Environment(&V)].
 - The [Environment Setup] dialog box is displayed.

Environment Setup	
Plotter Communication Miscellaneous Default plotter	Z setting procedure • Work top surface is 0 • Felt top surface is 0 • + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + +
ок	Cancel

- **2** Click the [Plotter] tab.
- **3** Check the model below [Default plotter].
- **1** Click the [Cancel] button to close the [Environment Setup] dialog box.

Changing the current plotter

- Close all open figures.
 - ⁽²⁷⁾ "Closing figures"(P. 43)



• Immediately after CAMLINK2 start up, a new figure will open. Click the Close button in the top right to close the current figure.

2 From the CAMLINK2 menu bar, select [Setup(&S)] > [Environment(&V)].

• The [Environment Setup] dialog box is displayed.

Environment Setup	
Plotter Communication Miscellaneous Default plotter CFX Series Active Working Space X: 5080 mm Y: 2540 mm Undo	Z setting procedure Vork top surface is 0 Felt top surface is 0 +
ок	Cancel

- **3** Click the [Plotter] tab.
- **A** Select the plotter to use in the [Default plotter] list box.
- **5** Click [OK] to close the [Environment Setup] dialog box.

45

2.10 How to Use the Cutting Condition Migration Tool

If you used one of the following models in CAMLINK, you can inherit the cut conditions in CAMLINK2.

- CF2 Series
- CFL-605RT
- CF22 Series

This section describes how to use the tool to transfer cut conditions.

- **1** From the Windows [Start] menu, select [All apps] > [CAMLINK2] > [Cut Condition Transfer Tool].
 - The Cut Condition Transfer Tool is started.

2 Select the folder and the model.

Cutting Condition Migration Tool —		×
(1) CAMLINK DB Folder		
1 Folder Name		
(2) Machine Name		
2 CF2 💌		
		_
Cutting Condition Migration		
	En	d

1	CAMLINK DB folder	Select the folder where the CAMLINK cut conditions are stored. The following CSV files are required to transfer cut conditions. • Conditions.csv • Materials.csv • MyCondSet.csv • Mypens.csv • Thickness.csv
2	Model	Select the plotter to use.

3 Click the [Cutting Condition Migration] button.

• A dialog box is displayed when the transfer is completed.

MigrationTool	×
Cutting Condition Migrati	on has been completed.
	OK

1 Click [Exit] to exit the Cutting Condition Migration Tool.

Chapter 3 Cutting



This chapter

This chapter describes the basic process of cutting and related tasks.

Process of Cutting	48
Importing Cut Data (DXF Files) Reading in multi-text	50 .50
[Read DXF] > [Option] tab	. 51
Registering Blades	52
[Blade] tab	. 53
Compensating for overcutting	54
Registering Cut Condition Names	55
Setting Cut Conditions	56
Cut Condition > [Base Setting] tab	. 59
List of available tools	60
Repeated cutting ([Z Position] setting)	61
Cut Condition > [Detail Setting] tab	. 62
Cut Condition > [Milling] tab	. 66

Cut thickness with [Joint Setting] configu	ured
About hatching method Cut Condition > [V Cut] tab	70 72 73
Setting Up Layers	75
If registration marks have not been plac	ed
on the intended layer	78
Checking a Preview	79
Preview	81
Sending to a Plotter	83
Plotter Out	83
Edge Detect	86
Register Mark Setting	87

3.1 Process of Cutting

In the following example, DXF data with separate layers is prepared.

1 Create cut (DXF) data

- CP "DXF Versions"(P. 12)
- If you will modify individual cut conditions, prepare cut data with different layers or in different colors.



• For details on the available area for placing cut data, refer to the plotter operation manual.

Load work on plotter



• For details on how to load the work and using the plotter, refer to the plotter operation manual.

Work origin setting

• Switch to [Remote] mode after setting the origin.



For details, refer to the plotter operation manual.

Launching CAMLINK2

• CP "Starting CAMLINK2"(P. 41)



Upon first using the application, configure the environment settings. ⁽²⁷⁾ "Environment setup defaults"(P. 35)

5. Plotter selection (confirmation)

- Checking the current plotter"(P. 44)
- (mootant!) If not selected, select your plotter. (P. 45)

6 Blade registration (confirmation)

• Check the blade. Register a blade if no blade has been registered. (P. 52)

7. Work Size

• CP "Setting Up work space"(P. 105)

8 Importing cut (DXF) data

• Arrange the imported cut (DXF) data on to the work set. (2) "Importing Cut Data (DXF Files)"(P. 50)

9. Cut condition settings

• CP "Setting Cut Conditions"(P. 56)

10. Output condition settings

• CP "Setting Up Layers"(P. 75)



• Be sure to configure [Cut Condition] settings for layers you will output (cut).

11 Output

• CP "Sending to a Plotter"(P. 83)

3.2 Importing Cut Data (DXF Files)

Import cut data (a DXF file) as follows. (P. 12)

From the CAMLINK2 menu bar, select [File(&F)] > [New(&N)].

- A new figure is created.
- If a new figure is already open, go to the next step.

Select [File(&F)] > [Read DXF] from menu bar.

• The [Read DXF] dialog box is displayed.

Select a DXF file and click [Open].

- (1) Select the folder where the DXF file is stored.
- (2) Select the DXF file.
 - The shape is displayed on the preview screen.
- (3) Configure the [Loading Criteria] settings.
 - · Layer: The application imports layer information saved in the DXF file.
 - Color: The application creates a layer for each color of the shape saved in the DXF file.
- (4) Click the [Option] tab.
 - Configure the setting items. (27 "[Read DXF] > [Option] tab"(P. 51)

 To automatically display the [Layer Setting] dialog box after placing DXF data on the editing screen, select the [After loading, display the Layer Setting dialog] check box on the [Option] tab. Configure layers as needed. If "Setting Up Layers" (P. 75)

On the editing screen, arrange the DXF data.

• Place the work within the area outlined in green (active working space) or blue (work area for works already configured).



You can also use the coordinate panel to set base points. (27 "Coordinate Panel"(P. 30)

Reading in multi-text

- Read text only ignoring font decoration information (color, font type, font alignment, overline and underline, strikethrough etc.).
- The size setting for each character cannot be read. Reads with the character size setting of the entire multi-text.
- The superscript, subscript, and fraction cannot be read.
- Using tabs and bullets may cause the character to be misaligned.

[Read DXF] > [Option] tab





No.	Item	Description
1	Catch Point for reading DXF	Select a base point for data placement.
2	Unit	Select the unit of measure for imported data.
3	Auto Grouping	Selected: Groups shapes by DXF file when data is imported.Cleared: Imports without grouping.
4	After loading, display the Layer Setting dialog.	Sets whether the [Layer Setting] dialog box is displayed after DXF files are imported.

3.3 Registering Blades

Register blades in advance.

Blades registered here are used for [Cut Condition] and [Layer Setting] in the [Setup(&S)] menu. TSetting Cut Conditions"(P. 56) TSetting Up Layers"(P. 75)

From the CAMLINK2 menu bar, select [Setup(&S)] > [Set Database(&A)].

• The [Set Database] dialog box is displayed.



2 Select the [Blade] tab and register the blade used.

• @ "[Blade] tab"(P. 53)

3 Click [Exit].

- Closing by clicking [x] cancels the settings.
 - · Closing by clicking [Exit] saves the settings.
 - A blade cannot be deleted unless the number and blade name are correctly entered.
 - Do not change the number. The output conditions already registered may be altered if the number is changed.

[Blade] tab

Register blades you will use as follows.

	Cutter Type			Cu	t Condition				
No.	1 Name	2 Type	3 Correction	4 Width	5 Height	6 Diameter	7 nimum Straight Line	-	Delete
	High-speed steel	0	0	2	0	0	0		
2	High-speed steel	0	0	5	0	0	0		
3	Carbide blade 30-	0	0	5	0	0	0		
4	Carbide blade45-	0	0	2	0	0	0		
5	High-speed steel	0	0	7	0	0	0		
6	Carbide design b	0	0	10	0	0	0		
7	Carbide both bla	1	0	3	0	0	0		Up
8	Carbide blade 75	1	0.3	0	0	0	0	-	
9	Endmill for resin	1	0	0	0	3	0	v	Down

1	Name	Enter the blade name.					
2	Туре	Select whether the blade is single- or double-edged. 0: Single edged 1: Double edged					
3	Correction	To compensate for overcutting, set the amount to be left uncut. Can be set to one decimal place (fixed value). Single-edged Width Correction Height Work Work Work					
4	Width	(See figure above.) Can be set to one decimal place.					
5	Height	(See figure above.) Can be set to one decimal place.					
6	Diameter	This function is available when a milling tool is selected in the [Cut Condition] dialog box. Entering the end mill tool diameter automatically creates cutting lines that take the diameter into account. Can be set to one decimal place.					
7	Minimum Straight Line (V)	This function is available when a V-cut tool is selected in the [Cut Condition] dialog box. Sets the minimum line segment length to be cut to prevent overcutting due to the blade width of the V-cut cutter. Can be set to one decimal place.					
8	Up	Moves the current blade up one position in the list.For convenience, cut condition names you use often can be moved up or rearranged.					
9	Down	Moves the current blade down one position in the list.					

(Important!) Correction

- Setting only the amount left uncut to compensate for overcutting will stop cutting before this length is reached, regardless of work thickness.
- The amount of compensation is reduced to zero when [Correction], [Width], and [Height] are all set to 0.
- The amount of compensation is calculated from [Width], [Height], and work thickness only when [Correction] is set to 0.
- Because the amount of compensation varies depending on blade shape and mounting position, we recommend making test cuts and measuring the portion overcut to decide the [Correction] setting.
- When a milling tool is selected, values other than the diameter are ignored for cutting.
- When a V-cut tool is selected, values other than the minimum straight line are ignored for cutting.

Compensating for overcutting

Products may be damaged if a blade cuts too far into the material.

To prevent product damage, this correction stops the blade before excessive cutting occurs.



Overcut correction applies in the following situations.

- When [Line Direction] is set: ("Changing line cutting direction" (P. 110)
- When [Line Division] is set: (27 "Dividing line segments"(P. 111)
- When [Auto Division] is set: See [Auto Division] for I Plotter Out"(P. 83).

3.4 Registering Cut Condition Names



These instructions are optional.

You can enter cut condition names in the database.

Configure the settings for the cut condition names registered in the database in [Cut Condition] in the [Setup(&S)] menu. These cut condition names are used in [Layer Setting]. If "Setting Cut Conditions" (P. 56) Conditions" (P. 56) Conditions" (P. 56) Conditions (P. 56) Conditions (P. 56) Conditions) (P.

From the CAMLINK2 menu bar, select [Setup(&S)] > [Set Database(&A)].

• The [Set Database] dialog box is displayed.

2 Select the [Cut Condition] tab and register the cut conditions.

• Click an item to enter, and then enter the value.

No	1	Sut Condition Name	
	1 NRNBROREPT Rubber		Delet
	2 Urethane foam		
	3 Joint sheet		
	4 Teflon Sheet		
	5 #7020		
	6 Sponge-based		
	7 Cork		
	8 Acrylic and Polycarbonate	5	Up
	9 Others		
			Dow

1	Deletes the current cut condition name.Clicking the Delete button will delete all registered cut conditions along with the cut condition name.	
2 Up		Moves the current cut condition name up one position in the list.For convenience, cut condition names you use often can be moved up or rearranged.
3	Down	Moves the current cut condition name down one position in the list.
-(To renar Cut cond Cut cond Cut cond Do not c	ne cut conditions, enter the new name directly in the [Cut Condition Name] field. ditions cannot be registered with the same name or number. ditions cannot be registered with the name "Register mark". hange the number. The output conditions already registered may disappear if the

• Do not change the number. The output conditions already registered may disappear if the number is changed.

3.5 Setting Cut Conditions

Set cut conditions to suit the work material and other details.

-ġ-

1

• Some setting items may not be available, depending on the equipment model used.

From the CAMLINK2 menu bar, select [Setup(&S)] > [Cut Condition(&D)].

• The [Cut Condition] dialog box is displayed.

Cut Condition							
General Conditio	ns				_		
Condition	PP				<u>-</u>		Add Condition Copy
Base Setting	Detail Setting 📗	Milling V Cut	1				
Station	C Station			•			
Tool	V-Cut 45 deg			-			
Output Order	Туре	Press Z Level Po	sition Spe	ed Times	Cutting Direction	Rpm	Z-Speed
1	TestBlade 💌	0	10	1	-	<u> </u>	10
	-						
	_						
Add Line	Delete	Line	_	Up		lown	
Work	3	mm					
	1						
Machine Information							
レイヤー設定							
Output Order Show	Output Color I	ayer Name.					Cut Condition
		1					
		OK				Te	est Cut Cancel
		ок			_	Te	est Cut Cancel

2 Check the tool mounted in the plotter.

- · Models for which machine information can be acquired
- (1) Click [Machine Information] on the [Base Setting] tab.
 - The [Machine Information] dialog box is displayed.

A Station	Camera	B Station	C Station	D Station	Reload
Standard		T15	T15	T15	
PEN	Snap	Creasing Diameter 16mm (T15)	-	V-Cut 45 deg	

- (2) Click [Reload].
 - Information on tools mounted in each station, camera connections, and work thickness is acquired from the plotter.
- (3) Click [OK].
 - The acquired information is applied.
- · Other models
- (1) Click [Tool Setting] on the [Base Setting] tab.
 - The [Tool Setting] dialog box is displayed.

Cor Base Se	ndition (CUT Detail Setting	Milling V (Dutij			•					Wdd Conditi	on	Сору	
Station	· [_		v									
Tool	2	2				•									
	Output Order	Туре	Pressure	Z Position	Speed	Times	Cutting Direction	F	pm Z-	-Speed					
	1	TestBlade 💌	100		30	1		•							
	Add Line Delete Line Up Down Work Thickness mm														
Ar	dd Line Work hickness	Delete	mm			Up		Dowr							
Ar つ	dd Line Work hickness 脱定	Delete	mm			Up		Down							
Ar Tr U-(177	dd Line Work hickness	Delete	umm mm	3		Up		Down	· · · · ·	Cut (Condition				

• Review and edit the types of tools for each tool number as needed. Configure settings according to the plotter's pen number assignments.

Tool Setting					x
Tool No.	Unit		Tool		
1	B Station	•	Reciprocating cutter	•	
2	B Station	•	Tangential cutter	•	
8	B Station	•	Tangential cutter	•	
4	B Station	-	Reciprocating cutter	-	
5	A Station	-	Swivel Cut	-	
6	A Station	-	PEN	-	
		014			
		OK	Cancel		

3 Click [Add Condition].

• The [Add Condition] dialog box is displayed.

Co	ndition	PP			-					Add C	ondition	Сору
Base Sel	ting D	etail Setting Milli	ng V Cut	1	_							· · · · ·
Station	. [D Station				•						
Teel		10 + 15 +				_						
1001	1	v-cut 45 deg				-						
		1	Prese	Z		T	Cutting	 Pom	7. Second			
	Output Order	Туре	Level	Position	speed	rimes	Direction	npin	2-opeeu			

L Enter a cut condition name and click [OK].

Add Condition		×
Add Condition Name Media1		
Making Condition	OK	Cancel

- To use cut conditions registered in "3.4 Cut Condition Name Registration", select from the [Cut Condition] list box.
 - To alter existing cut conditions, select from the [Cut Condition] list box.
 - You can also prepare cut conditions by copying existing conditions.
 - (1) Click [Copy Condition].
 - The [Copy Condition] dialog box is displayed.
 - (2) Select [Original Condition].
 - (3) Enter a cut condition name in [Add Condition Name], and then click [OK].

5 Enter, review, and edit the cut conditions as needed.

Cut Condition > [Base Setting] tab"(P. 59)

Configure the setting items on the [Detail Setting] tab.

Cut Condition > [Detail Setting] tab"(P. 62)



6

- When the tool is set to milling, configure the setting items on the [Milling] tab. ⁽²⁾ "Cut Condition > [Milling] tab"(P. 66)
 - When the tool is set to V Cut, configure the setting items on the [V Cut] tab. I Cut Condition > [V Cut] tab"(P. 73)

Check the combination of layers to be output and cutting conditions in Layer Settings.

8 Click [OK] to exit Cut Condition setup.

Cut Condition > [Base Setting] tab

Configure tool settings as follows. Click each setting item to configure it. You can also navigate between cells with the [Tab] key or the left and right arrow keys.



To delete a row, click the leftmost cell to select it. Press the [Delete] key to delete the row.
Items in gray cannot be configured.



No.	ltem	Value	Description
1	Tool attachment	*1	From the list, select the tool attachment used.
2	Tool	لکی "List of available tools"(P. 60)* ¹	Clicking the cell will display the [Tool Select] dialog box. Select the tool used and click [OK].
3	Cell for selecting the row	-	Click to select the row.
4	Output Order	1–100	Conditions are issued in order, starting from the top.
5	Blade	*2	From the list, select the type of blade used.
6	Pressure (Press Level)	*1	Set the cutting pressure. (The name varies depending on the model.)
7	Z Position	*1	Set the z-position of the tool tip when down. Note that the method of configuration varies depending on the [Z setting procedure] setting in [Environment Setup] (in @"""[Environment Setup] > [Plotter] tab"(P. 36)). • Work top surface is 0: Enter a value based on the top surface of the work. • Felt top surface is 0: Enter a value based on the bottom surface of the work. • Felt top surface is 0: Enter a value based on the bottom surface of the work. • Felt top surface is 0: Enter a value based on the bottom surface of the work.

No.	Item	Value	Description
			When using thick works, for example, you can also cut and trim the same shape repeatedly (repeated cutting). (Figure 1.1) (IZ Position] setting)"(P. 61)
8	Speed	*1	Set the cutting speed.
9	Times	*1	Cutting is repeated the specified number of times using the output order conditions (same conditions) entered.
10	Direction* ³	Upcut, Downcut	 Select the cutting direction. You may be able to improve the cut finish by changing the direction. We recommend making test cuts in advance to check the results. Upcut: Cut on the left side in the direction of end mill travel. Downcut: Cut on the right side in the direction of end mill travel.
11	Rpm* ³	18,000–40,000 rpm	Set the end mill rotation speed.
12	Z-Speed*3	1 to 500 mm/s ^{*1}	Set the speed at which the tool is lowered to the work.
13	Add Line		Adds a setting row at the very bottom.
14	Delete Line		Deletes the selected setting row.
15	Up		Moves the selected row up so that it is output earlier.
16	Down		Moves the selected row down so that it is output later.
17	Work Thickness	*1	Enter the work thickness.

*1. Varies by plotter.

*2. Limited to those in the database. (P. 52)

*3. Available when a milling tool is selected.

List of available tools

Model	Tool name
CFX Series	 Tools you can set differ according to the station. A Station: Pen, eccentric cutter, marker B Station, C Station: Flat blade, reciprocating cutter, roller, V-cut D Station: Flat blade, roller, V-cut, milling



For other models, only tool numbers can be specified. Be sure to check the pen number assignments set in the plotter as you set the cut conditions.

Repeated cutting ([Z Position] setting)

Repeated cutting refers to cutting and trimming the same shape repeatedly when using thick works, for example. Add conditions and set the tool tip position (Z).

• When set to 4 times

• Example when set for a work 10 mm thickness.



Times	Z position (mm)				
	Work top surface is 0* ¹	Felt top surface is 0* ¹			
1st time	3 mm	-7 mm			
2nd time	6 mm	-4 mm			
3rd time	9 mm	-1 mm			
4th time	10 mm	0 mm			

*1. Note that the method of configuration varies depending on the [Z setting procedure] setting in [Environment Setup] (in 🖓 "[Environment Setup] > [Plotter] tab"(P. 36)).

• Automatic condition generation function makes it easy to specify the Z position for frequency cut.

(P. 113) Automatic generation of cut conditions for times cut"(P. 113)

Cut Condition > [Detail Setting] tab

Conditions Condition Condition		Add Cor	ndition	Сору
ase Settine Detail Settine Milline V Cut -Cut Angle for circle 2 T Arc Cut Speed	5 Circle Theta correct			
© 360 deg C 390 deg 0 cm/s		B Station	C Station	D Station
Starting Pressure	R < 5	0	0	0
Pressure 0 e	5 <= R < 10	0	0	0
Minimum Diameter Setting	10 <= R < 15	0	0	0
Min Diameter 120 mm Min Arc Radius 0 mm	15 <= R < 20	0	0	0
Station C Station	20 <= R < 50	0	0	0
Tool Reciprocating Amplitude 3.5mm	50 <= B < 100	0	0	0
Cutter TestBlade	100 <= R	0		
Press Level 0 Z Position 3 mm	C- Elute Direction -			
Speed 10 cm/s	Out Condition		PaperWidth	
Z-Speed 10 mm/s	Pressure 0	cm/s	Direction	e
	Z Position 8	mm		
Number of cut for small circle	Flute Direction angle	e setting		
Diameter mm Additional 0 times	Angle 45	•		
しょうしゅう				
Output Ordex Show Output Color Layer Name	Out Con	dition		
		_		

1. [Cut Angle for circle] setting (optional)

Select [390 deg] if there are uncut portions at the beginning or end of circle cuts. Cutting for an extra 30 degrees will help prevent uncut material.

2. [Arc cut speed] setting (optional)

The cut speed can be specified for arc and circle data. Cutting slowly only the arc and circular data can lead to make a clean cut.

•	The speed cannot be specified by the radius of the arc and the circular data. When the [R** arc speed] in the plotter main unit setting is enabled, the [R** arc speed] of the main unit setting takes precedence over the arc cut speed.
*1.	For [R** arc speed] setting , refer to the plotter operation manual.

3. [Starting Pressure] setting (optional)

Adds your specified pressure at the beginning of cuts. Useful if there are uncut portions near the beginning of cuts.

4. [Minimum Diameter Setting] setting (optional)

Your specified tool will be used with shapes that cannot be cut, such as small circles or arcs.

ltem		Value	Description		
М	in Diameter	0 to 1,000 mm	Special handling applies to shapes smaller than this size.		
Μ	in Arc Radius	0 to 1,000 mm	Special handling applies to shapes smaller than this size.		
С	ut Condition	-	Configure the setting items.		
	Station	*1	From the list, select the station used for the minimum diameter setting.		
	Tool	*1	From the list, select the tool used for the minimum diameter setting.		
	Blade	*2	From the list, select the blade for the minimum diameter setting.		
	Pressure	*1	Set the pressure that applies to the minimum diameter setting.		

Item Value Speed *1 State		Value	Description
		*1	Set the speed that applies to the minimum diameter setting.

*1. Varies by plotter.

*2. Limited to those in the database. (P. 52)

5. [Circle Theta correct] setting (optional)

Thicker or harder works may cause misalignment of the beginning and ending points of circles. This setting can correct this difference before cutting.

\frown	$\left(\right)$	~
())

Item (R: Radius)	Value	Description
R < 5 5 <= R < 10	-20 to 20°	Enter a value in 0.5° increments.
10 <= R < 15 15 <= R < 20 20 <= R < 50 50 <= R < 100 100 <= R	-9.8 to 9.8°	Enter a value in 0.2° increments.

The numbers of stations and items vary depending on the plotter.

6. [Number of cut for small circle] setting (optional)

Circles of your specified diameter or smaller will be cut additional times (the number of times set in [Additional cutting]).

Set for thick works that cannot be cut in a single pass.

Item	Value	Description Set the diameter.			
Diameter	0 to 1,000 mm	Set the diameter.			
Additional cutting	1–99 times	Set the number of additional cuts.			

7.[Flute direction] setting

Changes the tool pressure (or Z-position of the tool's lowest point) depending on the direction of the cardboard flutes (tiers).

ltem	Value	Description
Conditions for cutting in the paper width direction	-	Configure the setting items.
Pressure	For the following tools: 1 - 16 • Ruled 16mm (T15) • Ruled 26mm (T15) • Ruled 60mm (T15) For the following tools: 16 - 31 • Ruled 16mm (T30) • Ruled 26mm (T30) • Ruled 60mm (T30)	Sets the tool pressure level for creasing the cardboard in the paper width direction (parallel to the flute). This can be set when the following tools are selected • Ruled 16mm (T15) • Ruled 26mm (T15) • Ruled 60mm (T15) • Ruled 16mm (T30) • Ruled 26mm (T30) • Ruled 60mm (T30)
Z Position	Z When origin setting is [workpiece top] -2 to 55.5mm When Z origin setting is [Felt top] -56 to 1.5mm	Sets the Z position of the tool tip when tooling down for creasing in the width direction of the cardboard (parallel to the flute). This can be set when the following tools are selected • Ruled 16mm (Z position) • Ruled 26mm (Z position)

Item	Value	Description
		Ruled 60mm (Z position)(CFX only) Ruled C6A
Angle setting in paper - (width direction		Configure the setting items.
Angle	1 to 45°	 You can set the upper limit of the angle of the path to which the paper width direction setting is applied when the flute direction is used as the reference (0°). Example: If the flute direction is vertical and the angle is set to 10°. Image: If the flute direction is vertical and the angle is set to 10°. Image: Image: Im

Cut Condition > [Milling] tab

Milling cut conditions

General Conditions	
Out Million V	Add Condition Conv
Condition Interims	
Base Setting Detail Setting Milling V Gut	
Use the Outside	Joint Setting
Switch the part to be left as the product.	3 In order to prevent the work from slipping, leave a part and cut it at the end.
OFF ON	Joint pcs
	Length (a)
	Haidet (b)
	mm
Majust start / end Drill Cut	rause
	(b)
2	(a)
	Joint part
Finishing Cut	Hatching
(a) オフセット量 mm	Route Space
Cut outside by offset(a) Cut the offset(a) and finish	
	Route Type
レイヤー設定	
Output Order Show Output Color Layer Name	Cut Condition

1. [Use the Outside] setting

Specify the portion after cutting that will be used as a product.

- OFF: The outer portion will be removed to use the inner portion as a product.
- ON: The inner portion will be removed to use the outer portion as a product.



2. [Adjust start / end] setting

Set for a neater finish at the beginning and end of cuts.

• ON: Starts cutting from 2 mm outside.



X	• If the cut line crosses into adjacent objects, adjust by spacing the objects farther apart.
国	

3.[Drill cut] setting

Set when you want to drill holes in the media according to the shape of the DXF data.

- Milling diameter specification is not supported.
 Only [CIRCLE] DXF graphic data is drilled. Other shapes will not be cut.
- ON: Drill cuts are made.

• When DXF graphic data is [CIRCLE].



- The following functions are not available when drill cut is on
 - Product to the outside
 - Start-end correction
 - Finish Cut
 - · Hatching

• If you want to drill progressively deeper cuts, use the frequency cut function.

4. [Finishing Cut] setting

The setting is enabled when repeated cutting is set to two times or more in the cut conditions. The sides of the product are cut at once for a neat finish.

• Example

- [Base Setting] tab settings ("Cut Condition > [Base Setting] tab"(P. 59)
 - 1st cut: [Z Position] 3 (mm)
 - 2nd cut: [Z Position] 6 (mm)
 - 3rd cut: [Z Position] 10 (mm)

Cut Condi	tion											
General Conditions Cut PP Base Setting Detail Setting Milling VCut								Add Condition Copy				
Statio Tool) Station Alling					•					
	Output Type Press Z Postion Speed Times Cutting Direction Rpm Z-Speed											
	1	1	•	100	3	10	1	Upcut	•	18000	10	
	2	1	•		6	10	1	Upcut	•	18000	10	
Þ	3	1	-		10	10	1	Upcut	•	18000	10	

- [Milling] tab settings ⁽²⁾ "Cut Condition > [Milling] tab"(P. 66)
 - Finishing Cut: ON
 - Offset amount (a): 2 (mm)

Plotter operation

Cutting is performed along the red dotted lines. Except for the last cut, the outside is cut by the set offset amount.

First and	Third offset	
second offset	(a) Offset = 2 mm ◀	
Cut thickness of 3 mm (1st cut)		Work Thickness
Cut thickness of 6 mm (2nd cut)		
Cut thickness of 10 mm (3rd cut)	 Product part	

5. [Joint Setting] setting

Leaves a portion of the cut line uncut, and cuts at the end. Helps prevent work misalignment and ensure a neat finish. (Ref. "Cut thickness with [Joint Setting] configured" (P. 70)



Joint	Set the number of portions left uncut. Your specified number of uncut portions are evenly spaced along cut lines. Positions of uncut portions vary depending on joint length. Be sure to check the preview. Specifying multiple portions can help prevent works from shifting if they are warped or have large shapes.
Length (a)	Set the length of work portions left uncut.
Height (b)	Set the width/thickness of work portions left uncut. Warping or other factors may prevent works from being flat in some areas. We recommend setting joint height somewhat high.
Pause	Select to temporarily retract the plotter head to leave joint parts uncut. It may not be possible to cleanly cut end points of small or heavy works, which tend to shift more easily during cutting. After cutting pauses and the head is retracted, secure the work with tape or the like.

• When [Joint Setting] is set, we recommend actually cutting and checking.

6.[Hatching] setting

Set when you want to cut a surface by moving the tool at a specified interval. ("About hatching method" (P. 72)

Path spacing	Specifies the interval of hatching. (Recommended value: 1mm) Can be specified in the range of 0 mm to 6 mm.
Pathway type	[Hatching]: The tool moves at the specified interval.

When hatching is on, the following functions are not available

- cut to the finish
- Joint control
- drill cut
- Start-end correction

Cut thickness with [Joint Setting] configured

Examples for the following conditions.

- Work Thickness: 10 mm
- Z setting procedure: Set to [Work top surface is 0] ([Setup(&S)] > [Environment(&V)] ⁽²⁾ "[Environment Setup] > [Plotter] tab"(P. 36))

• Example 1

- [Base Setting] tab settings ("Cut Condition > [Base Setting] tab"(P. 59)
 - Cutting one time: [Z Position] 10 (mm)

Cut Condition									
General Conditions									
Condition Joint sheet	•		Add Condition Copy						
Base Setting Detail Setting Milling V Cull									
Station D Station	•								
Tool Miling	•								
	_								
Output Order Type Press Level	Z Position Speed Times Cutting Direction	Rpm Z-Speed							
✓ 1 Endmill fo ▼ 0	10 0.1 1 Upcut	▼ 18000 10							

- [Milling] tab settings ^(C) "Cut Condition > [Milling] tab"(P. 66)
 - Joint: 1 (one segment)
 - Length (a): 5 (mm)
 - Height (b): 5 (mm)

ut Condition	
Ceneral Conditions	Add Condition Copy
Base Setting Detail Setting Milling V Cut	
Use the Outside	Joint Setting
Switch the part to be left as the product.	In order to prevent the work from slipping, leave a part and cut it at the end.
OFF ON	Joint
	pcs
	Length (a) mm
	Height (b) mm
Adjust start / end Drill Cut	☐ Pause
	(b)
Finishing Cut	Hatching
(a) オフセット量 mm	Route Space
Cut outside by offset(a) Cut the offset(a) and finish	Route Type
レイヤー設定	
Output Show Output Color Layer Name	Cut Condition
ОК	Test Cut Cancel

Plotter operation

Cutting is performed along the red lines before cutting the joint sections.



• Example 2

- [Base Setting] tab settings ("Cut Condition > [Base Setting] tab"(P. 59)
 - 1st cut: [Z Position] 3 (mm)
 - 2nd cut: [Z Position] 6 (mm)
 - 3rd cut: [Z Position] 10 (mm)

ut Condition												
General Conditions												
Cut Inn Add										Add Condition Conv		
Condition PP												
Base Setting Detail Setting Milling V Cut												
Station D Station												
00	, P	Milling					-					
	Output Order	Туре		Press Level	Z Position	Speed	Times	Cutting Direction		Rpm	Z-Speed	
	1	1	•	100	3	10	1	Upcut	•	18000	10	
	2	1	-		6	10	1	Upcut	-	18000	10	
•	3	1	-		10	10	1	Upcut	-	18000	10	

- [Milling] tab settings ^{CP} "Cut Condition > [Milling] tab"(P. 66)
 - Joint: 1 (one segment)
 - Length (a): 5 (mm)
 - Height (b): 5 (mm)
- Plotter operation

Cutting is performed along the red lines before cutting the joint sections twice.

- First joint cut (fourth time overall): Cut thickness 6 mm
- Second joint cut (fifth time overall): Cut thickness 10 mm



About hatching method

Depending on the settings of [Product Outside], [Grouping], and [Milling Diameter], the hatching behavior is as follows

• When [Product Outside]: On, [Grouping]: Off, [Milling Diameter]: 6mm



• When [Product Outside]: On, [Grouping]: Off, [Milling Diameter]: 0mm



• When [Product Outside]: On, [Grouping]: Off, [Milling Diameter]: 6mm



• When [Product Outside]: On, [Grouping]: On, [Milling Diameter]: 6mm



If you want to perform hatching gradually, use the frequency cut function.
Cut Condition > [V Cut] tab

@ "V-Cutting"(P. 131)

Cut Condition	
General Conditions	
Candition work5	Add Condition Copy
Base Setting Detail Setting Milling VCut	
Single Cut Setting	Triple Cut
	3 Output straight lines set to "Double cut" as "Triple cut".
(a) Z Uncut Value (Single) 0 mm	
(b) V Cut Offset (Single) (Auto	Theta correct
C Manual 0 mm	$4 \rightarrow + \theta$
Double / Triple Cut Setting	
	Theta correct 0 •
(a) Z Uncut Value (Double) 0 mm	
(b) V Cut Offset (Double) • Auto	
C Manual 0 mm	
ОК	Test Cut Cancel

• [Z Uncut Value] setting

Specify the uncut amount of work as distance from the bottom of the work. When set to 0 mm, the work is cut.



• [V Cut Offset] setting

Set the folding width for double or triple cutting.

"Auto" and "Manual" can be selected for the V Cut Offset.

- Auto: The folding width is automatically calculated according to the angle of the V-cut blade attached to the main unit.
- Manual: The setting for [Z Uncut Value and V Cut Offset] is used.





• [Triple Cut] setting

Set double cutting to triple cutting.





• [Z Uncut Value and V Cut Offset] setting

Using the V-cut tool to create boxes with materials such as thick cardboard enables sharp edges. In this case, the outer edge is cut out with the cut method set to single. Set the cut method to double or triple the inner part, and leave the bottom surface without cutting.





• When setting the double or triple above, [Z Uncut Value] and [V Cut Offset] must be set so that the extension line of blade tip and the cut line in the data are aligned. Note that if these settings are different, the box shape will become corrupted.



Furthermore, the [Z Uncut Value] and [V Cut Offset] values must also be changed depending on the mounting angle of the V-cut tool. Set the following calculation formula as the starting points.

V-cut tool angle	Z Uncut Value(mm)	V Cut Offset(mm)
15°	V Cut Offset/ 0.268	Z Uncut Value x 0.268
22.5°	V Cut Offset/ 0.414	Z Uncut Value x 0.414
30°	V Cut Offset/ 0.577	Z Uncut Value x 0.577
45°	V Cut Offset	Z Uncut Value

• [Circle Theta correct] setting (optional)

When using V-cut, it sets the theta correction angle.



3.6 Setting Up Layers

Configure layer settings, such as changing the working layer or naming/renaming layers, as follows.



• Be sure to configure [Cut Condition] settings for layers you will output (cut). Output/cutting is not possible if they are not set.

• Layers in DXF files

Information imported when you import DXF files varies depending on the [Loading Criteria] setting. "Importing Cut Data (DXF Files)"(P. 50)

- Layer: The application imports layer information saved in the DXF file.
- Color: The application creates a layer for each color saved in the DXF file.

• When additional MDT2 data is imported

Previously saved layer information remains intact after importing. If additional information is imported, this will be combined with the existing layer with the same name. (P. 41)

• Order of layers

Layers are cut sequentially starting with shapes on the upper layer (excluding registration marks).

• Working layer

New data added with copy/paste or comment functions on the editing screen is added to this layer. ricons identify this layer. You can change the working layer from the [Layer Setting] dialog box. Full Layer Setting"(P. 76)

• Layer settings are not available unless shape data has been arranged.

From the CAMLINK2 menu bar, select [Setup(&S)] > [Layer Setting].

• The [Layer Setting] dialog box is displayed.



Configure the setting items.

- CP "Layer Setting"(P. 76)
- If registration marks are not placed on the layer they are intended for, **close the [Layer Setting] screen** and follow the steps in 🐨 "If registration marks have not been placed on the intended layer"(P. 78).



Layer Setting

1	٢	۲	7	Cutting	g layer1			-
2			P	Cutting	g layer2			-
3			-	Pen-w	riting layer		_	•
1	2 3	4	5	6	6		7	

1	Output Order	Layers are output in order starting with the first layer.			
2	Working	You can change the order of the layer with the 🖍 icon, rename it, or delete it. Text entered in [Comment Parameters], as well as pasted shapes, are			
		placed on the working layer, identified by a 🗩 icon.			
3	Show	To show a layer on the editing screen, click the [Show] cell. Visibility is			
		indicated by this icon: 👁.			
		 Click the [Show] cell again to clear the I icon and hide the layer on 			
		the editing screen. (As long as the \overline{p} icon is displayed, the layer will be output, even if it is hidden.)			
4	Output	To mark a layer for output, click the [Output] cell. Output is indicated by thi			
		icon: 7.			
		• Click the [Output] cell again to clear the icon. The layer will not be output.			
5	Color	Used to change the color of the layer's shape.			
		1. Click the layer's [Color] cell.			
		 The [Color] dialog box is displayed. 			
		2. Select a color and click [OK].			
		 The color is updated accordingly. 			
		To set colors other than the standard colors			
		1. Double-click the color in the lower right of the [Color] dialog box.			
		Color			
		OK Cancel			
		 A separate [Color] dialog box is displayed. 			
		2. Select a color and click [OK].			
		 The color in the lower right is updated accordingly. 			
		3. Select the color in the lower right and click [OK].			

6	Layer Name	Lists the names of all figure layers.			
7	Cut Condition	 Used to select registered cut conditions. This list is not displayed unless cut conditions have been registered in the database. I "Registering Blades"(P. 52) Be sure to configure [Cut Condition] settings for layers to be output. Be sure to set registration marks in [Cut Condition] for the layer to be used for these marks. Registration marks can only be set on one layer. There is no need to add registration marks to the database in order for them to be listed in the cut conditions. 			
8	New	Creates a new layer.			
9	Delete	 Deletes the layer. 1. Click the [Working] cell for the layer to be deleted. icons identify this layer. 2. Click [Delete]. The layer is deleted. A warning message is displayed for layers with shape data. 			
10	Rename Layer	 Used to rename the layer. Click the [Working] cell for the layer to be renamed. icons identify this layer. Click [Rename Layer]. The [Rename Layer] dialog box is displayed. Edit [Layer Name] as needed and click [OK]. The layer is renamed. 			
11	Up	 Moves the layer up one position in the output order. 1. Click the [Working] cell for the layer to be reordered. icons identify this layer. 2. Click [Up]. The layer is moved up one position. 			
12	Down	 Moves the layer down one position in the output order. 1. Click the [Working] cell for the layer to be reordered. icons identify this layer. 2. Click [Down]. The layer is moved down one position. 			
13	ОК	Saves the current changes and closes the Layer Setting dialog box. The [Undo] function is then disabled here.			
14	Cancel	Closes the Layer Setting dialog box without saving the current changes.			

If registration marks have not been placed on the intended layer

Follow these steps if registration marks have not been placed on the layer they are intended for.

- **1** Ungroup registration marks and other shapes if they are currently grouped.
 - From the CAMLINK2 menu bar, select [Edit(&E)] > [Ungroup(&N)].
- **2** The [Layer Setting] dialog box opens.
 - CAMLINK2 menu bar: [Setup(&S)] > [Layer Setting]
- 3 Set registration marks in [Cut Condition] for the intended layer, and then click [OK].
 - If there is no layer for registration marks in [Cut Condition], create a layer with your preferred name for this purpose.
- 4 Select a registration mark in the figure and select [Edit(&E)] > [Move Layer] from the CAMLINK2 menu bar.
 - The [Move Layer] dialog box is displayed. (CP "Moving shapes to other layers"(P. 102)

5 Select a layer for the registration marks and click [OK].

• The registration marks are moved to the layer for this purpose.

3.7 Checking a Preview

Before outputting the data to cut, you can preview cut lines and details such as the direction and order of cutting as specified in your cut conditions.

From the CAMLINK2 menu bar, select [Output(&O)] > [Plotter Out].

• The [Plotter Out] dialog box is displayed.

1

Plotter Out		
Offset X 0 mm Y 0 mm Vacuum Setting Vacuum ON auto before output Vacuum OFF auto after output	Output Option Output to file Auto Division Head evacuation after output Head final position Bottom Right Y 0 mm Y 0 mm	Communication Plotting Area (L) Preview Trace Output
Register Mark Setting ✓ ✓ ✓ ✓ ✓ ✓ ✓ 1 ✓ 1 ✓ 1 ✓ 10 ✓ 10 ✓ 10 ✓ 10 ✓ Ekte Direction	Output All Shapes with Pen Speed 10 Pressure 50 Edge Detect Edge Detect Corner Bottom Right Edge Detect Process	
Reverse Cut Mode Flip Direction Work direction Work direction	Start	Cancel

2 Configure the output conditions and click [Preview].

• The [Preview] dialog box is displayed.



- **3** Configure the setting items.
 - @ "Preview"(P. 81)



5 Click [Close] to close the screen.

Preview



Display Setting

Cutting Direction	 Red cut lines run clockwise, and black cut lines run counterclockwise. Select [Arrows] to indicate the cutting direction with arrows. For open paths, both cutting directions are shown in black. 			
Start Position	The cutting start point is shown in blue.			
End Position	The cutting end point is shown in orange.			
Move	Lines where the tool is raised and moved are shown in yellow.			
Cutting Order	The order of output (cutting) is indicated by numbers.			
Tool Position	The position of the tool (head) is shown in green.			
Show Original	Displays the original DXF file.			
V Cut Path	 Lines are displayed where you have specified V-cutting. Display varies as follows depending on your specified V-cut method. Single: V-shapes point to the right in the cutting direction. Double / Triple: V-shapes point on both sides in the cutting direction. The following figure shows an example of Single cutting. 			

• [Display Setting] colors can be changed by clicking color boxes to the right of each setting.

Simulation

Simulations enable you to check tool motion.

- D: Starts the cutting simulation.
- (I): Shows the state before cutting.
- D: Shows the state after cutting.

• Playback Speed: Sets the simulation speed.

3.8 Sending to a Plotter

Send figure data with your specified cutting conditions to a plotter as follows.



Data protruding to the bottom left of the work will not be cut.

From the CAMLINK2 menu bar, select [Output(&O)] > [Plotter Out].

• The [Plotter Out] dialog box is displayed.



Configure the setting items.

• (2) "Plotter Out"(P. 83)

3 Click [Start] to start cutting.

Plotter Out

Plotter Out					
1 X 0 mm Y 0 mm mm 2 Vacuum Setting		6 7 8	Output Option	11 12 13 14	Communication Plotting Area (L) Preview Trace Output
Register Mark Setting 3rd Length adjust Pepeat Ontinuous spacing 10 110	First Time	9	Cutput All Shapes with Pen Speed To utput All Shapes with Pen Pressure To Edge Detect Edge Detect Corner Edge Detect Process To the period of the period		
4 Reverse Cut Mode Flip Direction	5 Flute Direction Work direction		Start		Cancel

1	Offset	By specifying an amount of offset, you can move the shape for output within the active working space (outlined in green). Offsets can also be negative. You can preview the results on the right.
2	Vacuum setting	 Set vacuum operation. Vacuum ON before output: Activates the vacuum before cutting. Vacuum OFF after output: Deactivates the vacuum after cutting.
3	Register Mark Setting	Available when registration marks are detected. (Register Mark Setting"(P. 87)
4	Reverse Cut Mode	 Available for models of equipment that support reverse cutting and detect registration marks. For reverse cutting, specify the work flip direction. Vertical: Set when works are flipped vertically. Horizontal: Set when works are flipped horizontally.

5	Flute Direction	Sets the orientation of the media based on the direction of the cardboard flutes (corrugated). For models with lower right origin
		 Image: Set when the flute is vertical when viewed from the front of the plotter.
		• 🗐: Set when the flute is horizontal when viewed from the front of the plotter. For models with lower left origin
		• Use the set when the flute is vertical when viewed from the front of the plotter.
		• 📮: Set when the flute is horizontal when viewed from the front of the plotter.
6	Output to file	Saves data and commands for output in Plot Command File Format (*.PLT). Saved files can be sent to the plotter via [Output(&O)] > [Send a Spool File(&F)]. • Operation
		 Select the check box and click [Start] to display the [Output to file] dialog box. Enter a file name of your choice and click [Save].
7	Auto Division	Automatically divides lines to prevent overcutting. Automatic line cutting is only available for straight lines. The length of divisions varies depending on the blade used.
		Cutting counterclockwise
		automatic division positions
		1. Normal cutting direction
		 Cut in the opposite direction, corresponding to the length of [Correction] for the blade (registering Blades"(P. 52) [Blade] tab)
8	Head evacuation after output	 Specify the final head position after output. Eccentric: Bottom Left, Bottom Right, Top Left, Top Right Retracts the head respectively to the Bottom Left, Bottom Right, Top Left, Top Right positions within the Active Working Space. An offset position can be specified if [Offset] is selected. The offset position is the position at that distance from the point diagonal to the origin along the maximum frame around shapes.
9	Output All Shapes with Pen	Pen output applies to all shapes. Enter the pen speed and pressure.
10	Edge Detect	Detects the work origin and tilting. The cutting angle is adjusted to suit work tilt.
11	Communication	For checking communication with the plotter. (2) "[Environment Setup] > [Communication] tab"(P. 37)
12	Plotting area	 Check the shape plotting area. [Plotting Area confirmation] dialog box instructions Click the pen icon to specify raising or lowering of the pen after the head is moved.
		 Click the arrows in the corners or the circle in the center to move the plotter head to the output position.
		 Automatic: Click to move between the four corners, one after another.

		 Plotting area confirmation is executed by the tool selected in the confirmation tool ([Pointer] or [Pen]) (CFX series only).
13	Preview	Before cutting, you can preview cut lines and details such as the direction and order of cutting as specified in your cut conditions. (Ref "Checking a Preview"(P. 79)
14	Trace Output	Outputs a cut line using the plotter red pointer before cutting.

Edge Detect

Edge detection is available under the following conditions.

- · Surface cutting for data without registration marks
- · Reverse cutting for data with registration marks

For reverse cutting instructions, see IP "Reverse cutting of printed works (data with registration marks)"(P. 124).

Edge Detect	
1 Edge Detect Corner	Bottom Right
2 Edge Detect Process	

1	Edge Detect Corner	Shows the position of the reference corner.For models with an origin in the lower right: Lower right
2	Edge Detect Process	 Select the work tilt detection method. (default): Detect the reference corner position and the work's horizontal/vertical edge. Detect the reference corner position and the work's horizontal edge. Detect the reference corner position and the work's vertical edge. Detect the reference corner position and the work's vertical edge. Detect only the reference corner position.

Register Mark Setting



1	Continuous mode	 Select this option when printing a series of shapes with registration marks. Repeat: Enter the number of shapes vertically and horizontally. Continuous spacing (mm): Set the distance in mm between vertical/horizontal registration marks. Vertical spacing Vertical spacing Horizontal spacing
2	Mill end mode	Select this option when printing multiple copies with only one shape with registration marks placed.Repeat: Set the number of works for output.
3	Length adjust	Works that have been stored where the temperature fluctuates, and so on may expand or contract. In this case, when this option is selected, the output data is corrected for cutting to suit the work.
4	1st time	Specify where to detect the first registration mark.More detections take longer but enable more accurate cutting.
5	Continue	Specify where to detect the second and subsequent registration marks.
Ý	• The setting r	anges for Repeat and Space vary depending on the model being used.

Chapter 4 Basic Operations



This chapter

This chapter describes basic ways of using the software.

Selecting Shapes/Canceling Selection	90
Editing Functions	91
Moving shapes	91
Creating linked copies of shapes/canceling	
linkage	92
Rotating shapes	95
Horizontally or vertically flipping (mirroring)	
shapes	96
Resizing shapes	96

Creating multiple copies of shapes	98
Grouping/ungrouping shapes	99
Disassembling shapes	100
Entering comments	100
Moving shapes to other layers	102
Grouping by layers	102
Doubleline check	103
Showing/canceling the grid	104
Setting Up work space	105

4.1 Selecting Shapes/Canceling Selection

• Selecting a shape

Select a shape in one of the following ways. Selected shapes are outlined by a dotted line.

- Click the shape. To select multiple shapes, hold down the [Shift] or [Ctrl] key while clicking.
- Drag around the shape. You can select multiple shapes this way.
- To select all shapes in the figure, press [Ctrl]+[A]. (Note that hidden shapes are not selected.)

Canceling selection

Cancel selection in one of the following ways. No dotted line is displayed around shapes after you cancel selection.

- Press the [Esc] key.
- Click an empty area in the figure.

4.2 Editing Functions

Moving shapes



Select a shape to move. Complete "Selecting Shapes/Canceling Selection" (P. 90)

Select [Move]. 2

- Move a shape in one of the following ways.
- From the CAMLINK2 menu bar, select [Edit(&E)] > [Move(& M)].
- Click the 🕂 icon in the toolbar.
- Right-click. From the pop-up menu displayed, select [Move(&M)].

Specify a base point to move. 3

- Specify shape base points in one of the following ways.
- · Click anywhere in the figure.
- (To use the coordinate panel: (27 "Coordinate Panel"(P. 30)) Click the coordinate values near the middle of the bottom of the screen. Set the base point coordinates or select a base point, and then click [OK].



Specify a destination point.

- Specify shape base points in one of the following ways.
- Click anywhere in the figure. To move a shape horizontally or vertically, hold down the [Shift] key while moving the mouse.
- (To use the coordinate panel: (2) "Coordinate Panel"(P. 30)) Click the coordinate values near the middle of the bottom of the screen. Set the base point coordinates or select a base point, and then click [OK].

Base Poir	it j
2 ×	
3 Y.	0

- (1) [Set the relative point]: Select this check box when specifying relative coordinates.
 - [Set the relative point] ON
 X: Enter the amount of movement in the X direction.
 Y: Enter the amount of movement in the Y direction.
 - [Set the relative point] OFF X: Enter the X-coordinate for shape placement.
 - Y: Enter the Y-coordinate for shape placement.
- (2) X-coordinate for shape placement or amount of movement in the X direction
- (3) Y-coordinate for shape placement or amount of movement in the Y direction

I	_/
l	\sim
l	ート
l	
I	L.

Shapes can also be moved by dragging them.

Creating linked copies of shapes/canceling linkage

Create a linked copy of a shape, with information in the original and the copy linked, as follows. Editing one shape also changes the linked copy at that time.

- To copy shapes to another figure, see the following section.
- Copy and paste shapes
- To copy multiple shapes, see the following section.
 "Creating multiple copies of shapes"(P. 98)
- The following editing is not available for shapes that are linked copies (both the original shape and the copy). You can edit the shapes in these ways by canceling the linkage.
 - (P. 95) "Rotating shapes" (P. 95)
 - CP "Horizontally or vertically flipping (mirroring) shapes"(P. 96)
 - CP "Resizing shapes"(P. 96)
 - Creating multiple copies of shapes"(P. 98)
 - (37) "Grouping/ungrouping shapes"(P. 99)
 - (3) "Disassembling shapes"(P. 100)
- Creating a linked copy

Select a shape to create a linked copy. (27 "Selecting Shapes/Canceling Selection"(P. 90)

2 Select [Link Copy].

- Create a linked copy in one of the following ways.
- From the CAMLINK2 menu bar, select [Edit(&E)] > [Link Copy(&Y)].
- Click the icon in the toolbar.
- Right-click. From the pop-up menu displayed, select [Link Copy(&Y)].

3 Specify a source base point to copy.

- Specify shape base points in one of the following ways.
- Click anywhere in the figure.
- (To use the coordinate panel: ("Coordinate Panel" (P. 30)) Click the coordinate values near the middle of the bottom of the screen. Set the base point coordinates or select a base point, and then click [OK].

		Base	Point —	
< [80.02	C-		—c
1			С	1
	9.53			
		•		- C

A Specify a destination base point.

• Specify shape base points in one of the following ways.

- Click anywhere in the figure. To move a shape horizontally or vertically, hold down the [Shift] key while moving the mouse.
- (To use the coordinate panel: I "Coordinate Panel"(P. 30)) Click the coordinate values near the middle of the bottom of the screen. Set the base point coordinates or select a base point, and then click [OK].

Set as relative point	Set as relative point	
a ×	2 × .	Ũ
3 "	3 Y.	0

- (1) [Set the relative point]: Select this check box when specifying relative coordinates.
 - [Set the relative point] ON
 X: Enter the amount of movement in the X direction.
 Y: Enter the amount of movement in the Y direction.
 - [Set the relative point] OFF
 X: Enter the X-coordinate for shape placement.
 Y: Enter the Y-coordinate for shape placement.
- (2) X-coordinate for shape placement or amount of movement in the X direction
- (3) Y-coordinate for shape placement or amount of movement in the Y direction

You can also create link-copies by holding down the [Ctrl] key and then selecting and dragging a shape.
In this case, note that selecting the shape first will prevent you from copying it.

• Canceling linkage

Select a shape to cancel linkage. 💯 "Selecting Shapes/Canceling Selection"(P. 90)

2 Select [Cancel Link Copy].

- Cancel linkage in one of the following ways.
- From the CAMLINK2 menu bar, select [Edit(&E)] > [Cancel Link Copy].
- Right-click. From the pop-up menu displayed, select [Cancel Link Copy].
- A dialog box is displayed for canceling linked copies.

3 Click [Yes] to cancel the linkage.

• The original shape and copy are no longer linked, and you can edit their cutting conditions and other information separately.

 All link copies to the same shape in the original are canceled if one of the original shape or copy is selected.

Rotating shapes

- Select a shape to rotate. ("Selecting Shapes/Canceling Selection" (P. 90)
- **2** Select [Rotate].
 - Rotate the shape in one of the following ways.
 - From the CAMLINK2 menu bar, select [Edit(&E)] > [Rotate(&O)].
 - Click the victor in the toolbar.
 - Right-click. From the pop-up menu displayed, select [Rotate(&O)].
 - Press [Ctrl]+[R].

3 Specify a center to rotate the shape around.

- Specify the center for rotation in one of the following ways.
 - Click anywhere in the figure.
- (To use the coordinate panel: (2) "Coordinate Panel"(P. 30)) Click the coordinate values near the middle of the bottom of the screen. Set the base point coordinates or select a base point, and then click [OK].

		Base	e Point —	
× [30.02	C-		
1		11	С	1
Y	9.53			
L		•		-Ċ

A Specify a rotation angle.

- Specify the angle for rotation in one of the following ways.
- Click anywhere in the figure. To rotate the shape in 45-degree increments, hold down the [Shift] key while moving the mouse.
- (To use the coordinate panel: I "Coordinate Panel"(P. 30)) Click the coordinate values near the middle of the bottom of the screen. Specify the angle and click [OK].

Set the Point Set Angle Base I	_{Point} ∣2	
1 Angle		0
ок		Cancel

- (1) Angle: Enter a rotation angle.
- (2) [Base Point] tab: You can change the center for rotation. Note that coordinates cannot be specified.

Horizontally or vertically flipping (mirroring) shapes

Select a shape to flip (mirror). (27 "Selecting Shapes/Canceling Selection"(P. 90)

• Text data cannot be mirrored.

2 Select [Mirror].

- Flip the shape in one of the following ways.
- From the CAMLINK2 menu bar, select [Edit(&E)] > [Mirror].
- Click the **I** icon in the toolbar.
- Right-click. From the pop-up menu displayed, select [Mirror].

3 Select a direction for flipping and click [OK].



1	Horizontal	Flips the shape horizontally.
2	Vertical	Flips the shape vertically.

Resizing shapes

Select a shape to resize. (27 "Selecting Shapes/Canceling Selection"(P. 90)

2 Select [Resize].

- Resize the shape in one of the following ways.
- From the CAMLINK2 menu bar, select [Edit(&E)] > [Resize(&E)].
- Click the 4 icon in the toolbar.
- Right-click. From the pop-up menu displayed, select [Resize(&E)].

3 Specify the base point to resize the shape from.

• Specify shape base points in one of the following ways.

- Click anywhere in the figure.
- (To use the coordinate panel: (P. 30)) Click the coordinate values near the middle of the bottom of the screen. Set the base point coordinates or select a base point, and then click [OK].

		Bas	e Point —	_
< [80.02	I c		
. –			C	1
	9.53	6		

A Specify the position as the basis for resizing, or use the coordinate panel to specify resizing.

 (To use the coordinate panel: I "Coordinate Panel"(P. 30)) Click the coordinate values near the middle of the bottom of the screen. Set the base point coordinates or select a base point, and then click [OK].

Resize Ratio Base Point 5	
1 Ratio	times
4 104.95x100.71 2 Width	3
OK Cancel	

- (1) Ratio: Specify the resizing ratio.
- (2) Width/Height: Set whether resizing applies to the width or height.
- (3) Enter the size after resizing. Enter the size in mm.
 - The resizing ratio is automatically calculated and shown in [Ratio].
- (4) Width x Height: Shows the original width and height.
- (5) [Base Point] tab: You can change the base point used for resizing. Note that coordinates cannot be specified.

Creating multiple copies of shapes

Create multiple copies of a shape to fit the working area as follows. First, group all shapes.



The [Group by layer] in the [Edit] menu can be used to group together all of the shapes within the same layer.

Select [Multi Copy].

- Create multiple copies in one of the following ways.
 - From the CAMLINK2 menu bar, select [Edit(&E)] > [Multi Copy(&I)].
- Click the a icon in the toolbar.
- Right-click. From the pop-up menu displayed, select [Multi Copy(&I)].

2 Configure the first column.



1	Column	Indicates which column you are configuring.
2	Offset X	Offset from the origin in the X direction.
3	Offset Y	Offset from the origin in the Y direction.
4	Space X	Link copy spacing in the X direction.
5	Space Y	Space between shapes in the Y direction.
6	Link Copy Numbers:	The number of link copies in the Y direction.
7	Link Copy Times:	The number of times when the link copies in the Y direction are shifted to the X direction.
8	Total	The total number of shapes specified for link copying.
9	Working area	Indicates the working area.
10	Shape Size	Indicates the size of the maximum shape frame.
11	•	Switches to showing information for the preceding column.
12	•	Switches to showing information for the next column.
13	Add	Adds a column.
14	Delete	Deletes the column indicated in [Column].

• Information for the item in focus among items 2–8 and 13 is highlighted in red in the small window.

• To ensure that all shapes fit in the working area, the maximum link copy numbers/times and total quantity vary depending on offset/space values.

3 Click the [Preview] tab for a preview of multi-copying.

4 Click [OK].

• Multiple copies are created.

1_/	
\mathbf{X}	
"H	

 Data with multiple copies created becomes link copies. (AP "Creating linked copies of shapes/canceling linkage"(P. 92)

Grouping/ungrouping shapes

Grouping shapes

Group selected shapes into a single shape as follows. Once shapes are grouped, you can edit them as if they were a single shape by rotating, flipping (mirroring), moving them, and so on.



The shapes you will group should be placed on the same layer. Shapes on separate layers cannot be grouped. To move shapes to the same layer, use [Move Layer] in the [Edit] menu.
 "Moving shapes to other layers" (P. 102)

• Grouping when importing DXF files can be set in [Auto Grouping]. 🖓 "Configuring the environment"(P. 35)

Select shapes to group. (27 "Selecting Shapes/Canceling Selection"(P. 90)

2 Select [Group].

• Group shapes in one of the following ways.

- From the CAMLINK2 menu bar, select [Edit(&E)] > [Group(&G)].
- Click the 🛄 icon in the toolbar.
- Right-click. From the pop-up menu displayed, select [Group(&G)].
- Press [Ctrl]+[G].

3 Click [Yes(&Y)] after the confirmation dialog box is displayed.

• Your selected shapes are now grouped.

• Ungrouping shapes

Ungroup grouped shapes as follows. Once shapes are ungrouped, you can edit them separately by rotating, flipping (mirroring), moving them, and so on.



Select a shape to ungroup. ("Selecting Shapes/Canceling Selection" (P. 90)

• You can select multiple groups.

2 Select [Ungroup].

- Ungroup shapes in one of the following ways.
 - From the CAMLINK2 menu bar, select [Edit(&E)] > [Ungroup(&N)].
- Click the 🛄 icon in the toolbar.
- Right-click. From the pop-up menu displayed, select [Ungroup(&N)].



• Your selected shape is now ungrouped.

Disassembling shapes

Disassemble selected shapes into line segments as follows.



 When disassembling a grouped shape, you will need to ungroup the shape before you can disassemble it.



Select a shape to disassemble. Compare Selecting Shapes/Canceling Selection"(P. 90)

Select [Disassemble the Shape].

- Group shapes in one of the following ways.
- From the CAMLINK2 menu bar, select [Edit(&E)] > [Disassemble the Shape(&V)].
- Right-click. From the pop-up menu displayed, select [Disassemble the Shape(&V)].

Click [Yes(&Y)] after the confirmation dialog box is displayed.

• Your selected shape is now disassembled into line segments.

Entering comments

Enter text on figures as follows. Your entered text is output by pen in a linear font (consisting of characters' center lines).

Text data with comments entered cannot be output for reverse cutting.
 Similarly, text data with comments entered cannot be edited using the following functions:

 Mirror
 Output order changed
 Cutting direction changed
 Line Division
 Cutting Start Position

- Entered text can be edited as follows. Selecting a string changes the text display color to gray. Edit text displayed in gray.
 - Cutting/copying/pasting shapes ⁽²⁾ "Edit(&E) Menu"(P. 145)
 - ⁽²⁷⁾ "Moving shapes"(P. 91)
 - Creating linked copies of shapes/canceling linkage"(P. 92)
 - (Rotating shapes"(P. 95)
 - CP "Resizing shapes"(P. 96)
 - Creating multiple copies of shapes"(P. 98)
 - CP "Grouping/ungrouping shapes"(P. 99)



• Entering comments

- Select [Comment Parameters].
 - Enter comments in one of the following ways.
 - From the CAMLINK2 menu bar, select [Edit(&E)] > [Comment(&K)].
 - Click the Al icon in the toolbar.
 - Right-click the figure. From the pop-up menu displayed, select [Comment(&K)].
 - Press [Ctrl]+[T].

2 Specify a comment base point.

- The [Comment Parameters] dialog box is displayed.
 - Specify comment base points in one of the following ways.
 - Click anywhere in the figure.
 - (To use the coordinate panel: (2) "Coordinate Panel"(P. 30)) Click the coordinate values near the middle of the bottom of the screen. Set the base point coordinates and click [OK]. Comment base points cannot be set.

		-Base Point
× [80.02	ç —
Υ	9.53	
		e c

3 Fill in any of the fields as required.

- Width (mm): Specify the width of one character. Enter "0" to make the width 1/2 of the height.
- Height: Enter the height of one character.
- Angle: Enter an angle to tilt the text.

Comment Para	meters
1 Width	0
2 Height	0
3 Angle	0
ОК	Cancel

4 Click [OK].

5

• The base point where text will be entered is indicated by a flashing cursor (□).

Enter the text.

- Press the [Enter] key to insert a line break.
- After the second line, pressing the [Enter] key without entering text will exit comment input.

Moving shapes to other layers

Move selected shapes to other layers as follows.

- Select a shape to move to another layer. (2) "Selecting Shapes/Canceling Selection" (P. 90)
- **2** Select [Move Layer].
 - Move shapes to another layer in one of the following ways.
 - From the CAMLINK2 menu bar, select [Edit(&E)] > [Move Layer].
 - Right-click. From the pop-up menu displayed, select [Move Layer].
 - The [Move Layer] dialog box is displayed.

3 Select [Destination Layer] and click [OK].

Moves the sele	cted Shanes ti	n the Destinatio
Destination Lay	er	
Layer 1		
		-

Grouping by layers

Shapes can be grouped together by layer.

Select [Group by layer].

- Group shapes by layer in one of the following ways.
 - From the CAMLINK2 menu bar, select [Edit(&E)] > [Group by layer].
 - Right-click. From the pop-up menu displayed, select [Group by layer].
 - A confirmation dialog box is displayed.

2 Click [Yes(&Y)] after the confirmation dialog box is displayed.

• All data is grouped together by layer.



- Data on hidden layers will also be grouped.
 - Existing grouping information will be lost.
 - All linkage of link copied data will be cancelled.

Doubleline check

Remove double lines (double lines) to reduce the number of extra cuts.

- Double line checks cannot be performed if grouped figures are included.
 - Double line checks cannot be performed if array-copied or link-copied shapes are included.
 - Only line segments of the same length on the same layer are considered double lines.
 - Overlapping shapes other than line segments, or line segments with the same placement and length but on different layers, will not be double-lined.



- **1** Select [Double Line Check].
- 2 The double line is indicated by a bold line and a message appears asking if the double line should be deleted.



• If there is no double line, the following message is displayed Click OK to close the window.



Λ

4.3 Showing/canceling the grid

Display a grid with your specified pitch as follows.

Showing the grid

When a grid is set, pointer movement is aligned with the grid.



From the CAMLINK2 menu bar, select [View(&V)] > [Grid(&G)].

• The [Grid Parameter] dialog box is displayed.

2 Configure the setting items.

- X (mm): Enter the horizontal grid pitch.
- Y (mm): Enter the vertical grid pitch.
- Snap: When this option is selected, objects snap to the grid.
- Show: When this option is selected, the grid is displayed.



• Selecting Show will automatically select [Snap], and objects will be snapped.

• A "G" (for "grid") in the upper left of the figure indicates that the grid is enabled.



3 Click [OK].

Canceling the grid

From the CAMLINK2 menu bar, select [View(&V)] > [Grid(&G)].

• The [Grid Parameter] dialog box is displayed.



1

Configure the setting items.

• Show: Clear this option.



3 Click [OK].

• An "F" in the upper left of the figure indicates that the grid is disabled.

4.4 Setting Up work space

Configure the shape and size of the space for your work as follows. Keep this space in mind when arranging cut data.

Setting Up work space

- From the CAMLINK2 menu bar, select [Setup(&S)] > [Work Size(&W)].
 - The [Work Size] dialog box is displayed.

Work Size	
Work Space Setting	C Circle
X: 1000 Y: 2000	Diameter
ОК	Cancel

2 Specify the workspace shape and size and click [OK].

- [Rectangle]: Enter the length in the X and Y directions.
- [Circle]: Enter the diameter.



• Enter rectangle or circle sizes within the active working space.

3 Click a position in the figure that will be the origin for works.

• The work is placed, and the work area (in blue) is updated.



1

- You can also use the coordinate panel to set the origin. (Ref "Coordinate Panel"(P. 30)
- The base point setting cannot be changed.
 - Data protruding to the bottom left of the work will not be cut.

Removing work spaces

From the CAMLINK2 menu bar, select [Setup(&S)] > [Remove Work Space(&W)].

• The work size settings are cleared and restored to the active working space (in green) set in the environment settings.

Chapter 5 Applied Functions



This chapter

This chapter describes more advanced ways of using the software.

Checking/Changing the Output Order Changing/resetting grouped shape output	.108 t 108
Changing line segment output order	109
Line functions Changing line cutting direction Dividing line segments Changing the cutting start position	.110 110 111 112
Automatic generation of cut conditions for tin cut Set up automatic generation of cutting conditions	nes .113 113
Shape/size of registration marks	.117
Cutting printed works (data with registration marks)	.118

Process of cutting data with registration	
marks	.118
Detecting registration marks	.120
If registration marks cannot be detected.	.121
Using freely placeable marks to cut	.122
Reverse cutting of printed works (data with	
registration marks)	.124
Edge detection	.129
Scenarios where edge detection is used	.129
Edge detection and surface cutting using	
data without registration marks	.129
V-Cutting	.131
Milling	.135
Toggle Cutting	.138

5.1 Checking/Changing the Output Order

Changing/resetting grouped shape output order

Check the output order for grouped shapes as follows. Changes to the output order also apply to grouped shapes that are link copies.



• Changes are also applied to all groups that are link copies, regardless of whether they are link copy sources or destinations.

• Changing shape output order



7 From the CAMLINK2 menu bar, select [Output(&O)] > [Shapes Order(&O)].

• The [Shapes Order(&O)] menu is not available when multiple groups are selected.

3 Click shapes in your preferred output order.

- Selected shapes are displayed with solid lines.
- A confirmation dialog box is displayed after all shapes have been selected.

L Click [Yes] to apply your changes to the output order.

• To cancel changes, click [No].

• Resetting shape output order

Restore grouped shapes to the state after importing as follows.

Select one of the grouped shapes.



Multiple groups cannot be selected. The [Initially Order(&I)] menu is not available when multiple groups are selected.

2 From the CAMLINK2 menu bar, select [Output(&O)] > [Initially Order(&I)].

• A dialog box is displayed for confirming initialization of the output order.

3 Click [Yes] to reset the output order.

• To cancel initialization, click [No].
Changing line segment output order

Change the output order for shape line segments as follows.

-()-	

 The following data cannot be processed: Data for output off layers, circular data, ellipse data, spline data, text data

Select a shape.



• If it is grouped, ungroup it. (27 "Grouping/ungrouping shapes"(P. 99)

2 From the CAMLINK2 menu bar, select [Output(&O)] > [Line Order(&L)].

• The [Line Order(&L)] menu is not available when multiple shapes are selected.

3 Click lines in your preferred output order.

- Selected segments are displayed with solid lines.
- A confirmation dialog box is displayed after all line segments have been selected.

4 Click [Yes] to apply your changes to the output order.

• To cancel changes, click [No].

5.2 Line functions

Changing line cutting direction

Change the cutting direction for shape line segments as follows. By changing the cutting direction, you may be able to reduce cutting errors caused by cutter eccentricity. (The number of cuts can be changed only for V-cut compatible plotters.)



The following data cannot be processed:

Data for output off layers, ellipse data, spline data, text data



Select a shape.



• If it is grouped, ungroup it. (2) "Grouping/ungrouping shapes"(P. 99)

2 From the CAMLINK2 menu bar, select [Output(&O)] > [Line Direction(&V)].

• Cutting direction is indicated by red arrows.



3 Click a line segment to change.

• Each click of the line segment changes the direction of arrows (indicating the cutting direction).



A Press the [Enter] key after you have changed the cutting direction.

• A confirmation dialog box is displayed.

Click [Yes] to apply your changes to the cutting direction. 5

· To cancel changes, click [No].

Dividing line segments

Divide straight lines in a shape and cut from the opposite end as follows. You can avoid overcutting by dividing line segments where you wish to avoid this.

\checkmark	
1	

• The following data cannot be processed:

Data for output off layers, data other than straight lines





There is no need to divide line segments when using an auto division function on the plotter output screen. ⁽²⁾ "Plotter Out"(P. 83)

Select a shape.

• If it is grouped, ungroup it. (P. 99)

From the CAMLINK2 menu bar, select [Output(&O)] > [Line Division(&D)]. 2

- · Red arrows on each line segment indicate the cutting direction.
- · Line segments already divided are marked with a red X in the middle.



The [Line Division(&D)] menu is not available when multiple shapes are selected.

3 Click a line segment to divide.

- · When division is specified, a red circle is added to the middle of the line segment.
- · To cancel this operation, click the same line segment again. The red circle is cleared, and the line segment is no longer marked for division.

4 After selecting all line segments to divide, press the [Enter] key.

· The [Auto line division Option] dialog box is displayed.



5 Specify a method of division.

· Center Division: Divides in the middle of the line segment.



• Length Division: Divides at your specified position. Set the distance from the line segment base point.



6 Click [OK].

• A confirmation dialog box is displayed.

Click [Yes] to divide the line segment.

• To cancel division, click [No].

Changing the cutting start position

Change where line segment cutting begins for shapes as follows.



1

7

The following data cannot be processed:

Data for output off layers, circular data, ellipse data, spline data, text data

Select a shape.

ر ال f it is grouped, ungroup it. 🖙 "Grouping/ungrouping shapes"(P. 99)

7 From the CAMLINK2 menu bar, select [Output(&O)] > [Cutting Start Position(&T)].

• The first line segment to cut is shown as a solid line.

3

- Click the line you wish to cut first.
- A confirmation dialog box is displayed.

4 Click [Yes] to apply your changes to the cutting start position.

• To cancel changes, click [No].

5.3 Automatic generation of cut conditions for times cut

The Z position is calculated based on the entered workpiece thickness and number of cuts, and the cutting conditions for the number of cuts are automatically generated.

The pressure tool generates a specified number of cut conditions at a constant pressure.

Click [Create New Condition] from the [Cut Condition] dialog box and enter a condition name.

2 Click on [Automatic Condition Generation].

• The [Automatic Condition Generation] dialog box appears.

Add Condition		x
Add Condition Name		
Making Condition	OK	Cancel

3 Sets automatic generation of cutting conditions.

Set up automatic generation of cutting conditions

The [Automatic Condition Generation] dialog box can be set up as follows

Station 1 Tool (a) Work Thickness 2 (b) First 0 3 (c) Z Remain	Zposition Calculation method
Type Speed 10 cm/s Pressure 50 g 5 Z-Speed 0 mm/s Uutting 7 Direction 7 Rpm 30000 rpm	a b c
ОК	Cancel

Enter station, tool, and workpiece thickness.

2 Enter the amount of brushing.

· Brush volume: Depth of first shallow cut

Enter the Z-leave amount or Z-depth.

3



• If Preferences [Felt top surface is 0] Specify the amount of Z left (height not cut).



• If Preferences [Workpiece top surface is 0] Specify the Z depth (height to cut).



A Specifies how the Z position is calculated.

Specifies whether to calculate the Z position for the number of cuts or the depth of one cut when calculating the Z position for the number of cuts from the workpiece thickness.

• If the number of times is specified

Generates a cut condition at the Z position where the depth to be cut is equally divided by the number of times.



 If you specify a cut depth per cut Generates a cut condition that cuts at each specified depth. The excess is cut at the last time.



Specify parameters other than Z position.

5

See below for a description of each parameter.
 "Cut Condition > [Base Setting] tab"(P. 59)



6 Click OK.

- Cutting conditions are generated on the Cut Conditions screen for the number of times cut.
- To save the displayed cut condition, click [OK] on the Cut Condition screen.

	Condition	CUT	11-					•							croin		Copy	
ase S	Setting	Detail Setti	ine N	Ailline V	Cút													
Stati	ion [3 Station					•											
Too	al [Flat Blade					•											
	0.4-14			0	17			0.00	_			_		_	_		_	
	Order	Туре		Level	Position	Speed	Times	Direction		Rpm	Z-Speed	1						
•	1	cut30	<u> </u>		-5.5	10	1		-		10	-						
	3	cut30	-		0	10	1		-		10							
	-		•						-									
_	_		_	_				_	_	_			-			_	_	
	Add Line	(Delete	Line			Up		Do	wn	1							
	Add Line Work		Delete	Line			Up		Do	wn								
_	Add Line Work Thickness		Delete	Line mm			Up		Do	wn								
Ŀ	Add Line Work Thickness Machine Information		Delete	Line			Up		Do	wn								
Ŀ	Add Line Work Thickness Machine nformation		Delete	Line			Up		Do	wn								
1	Add Line Work Thickness Machine Information		Delete	Line			Up		Do	wn								
ار مربا مربا	Add Line Thickness Machine mformation	Output C	Delete	Line mm	16		Up		Do	9WN		ut Cor	dition					
ा परि Out Ord	Add Line Thickness Machine nformation 一設定 Liput Show	Output C	10 10	Line mm ayer Nan (†%%d1	10		Up		Do	wn		ut Cor	dition					
ा प्रि Out Ord 1	Add Line Work Thickness Machine Information	Output C	Delete	Line mm ayer Nan (†996d)	10		Up		Do	WN		ut Cor	dition					
Ji Out Ord 1	Add Line Thickness Machine mformation	Output C	Delete	Line mm ayer Nan (†%%d1	* *		Up		Do			ut Cor	dition					

5.4 Shape/size of registration marks

Refer to the following information when setting the shape and size of registration marks.

• Registration mark size



• Registration mark shape

Three types of registration mark shapes are available, as follows, in addition to a shape that can be placed more freely.



• Do not place data in the light blue areas of outer or inner registration marks in the figure above. Moreover, do not place data near the registration marks. Failure to do so may prevent normal detection of the marks.

- When using square registration marks, outer registration marks, and inner registration marks, place the registration marks outside all of the cut data.
- When using the freely placeable registration mark, see (2) "Using freely placeable marks to cut" (P. 122).



5.5 Cutting printed works (data with registration marks)

Process of cutting data with registration marks

Include registration marks in the layout if you will cut the printed work. When using the freely placeable registration mark, see @ "Using freely placeable marks to cut"(P. 122).



Cannot be detected

Prepare cut data (a DXF file) with registration marks in CAD software or the like.

- (3P "DXF Versions"(P. 12)



• For details on the available area for placing cut data and registration marks (spacing, size, etc.), refer to the plotter operation manual.

2 Use a printer to print on the work.



Refer to the printer operation manual.



 When arranging shapes with registration marks consecutively, set the number of shapes and the spacing between them. I "Register Mark Setting" (P. 87)

3 Load the printed work on the plotter.



• Load the work so that the registration marks are straight horizontally and vertically.



12 Set the registration mark shape. (P. 120)

Select the registration mark shape used.

5

8

13 Set [Plotter Out] and start cutting. (Ref. "Sending to a Plotter"(P. 83)

Configure [Register Mark Setting] items. I Register Mark Setting"(P. 87)

Detecting registration marks

If you will cut using registration marks, make sure the registration marks are detected. (27 "Cutting printed works (data with registration marks)"(P. 118)

From the CAMLINK2 menu bar, select [Setup(&S)] > [Detect Mark].

• The [Detect Mark] confirmation dialog box is displayed.

2 Select the type of registration mark and click [OK].



1	Outer registration mark	Select this option to detect outer registration marks \neg \neg .
2	Inner registration mark	Select this option to detect inner register marks
3	Freely placeable registration mark	Select this option to detect freely placeable marks consisting of a black dot.
		There are no restrictions on the quantity or position. (AP "Using freely placeable marks to cut"(P. 122)
4	Square registration mark	Select this option to detect black square marks.

(montant!) If the registration marks cannot be detected, check the following.

- The shape and size of the registration marks must match the settings. ("Shape/size of registration marks" (P. 117)
- Files that include registration marks must be imported.
- Registration marks must be set in the cut conditions ([Setup(&S)] > [Layer Setting]). If "Setting Up Layers" (P. 75)
- The layer for registration marks must only include registration marks.
- The selected type of registration mark ([Setup(&S)] > [Detect Mark]) must be correct.

• Canceling registration mark detection

From the CAMLINK2 menu bar, select [Setup(&S)] > [Exit Detection].

• Registration mark detection is canceled.

If registration marks cannot be detected

• Problems due to work material, etc.

If the plotter cannot detect registration marks, fill in the area around them with a 12 mm white square. If the marks cannot be detected even after the white shading is added, the data with these registration marks cannot be cut.

Square registration mark



A: At least 50 mm B: 10 mm

C:12 mm

• Freely placeable registration mark



5.6 Using freely placeable marks to cut

	V.
-(_)~
[

Plotters supporting freely placeable marksCFX Series (with camera unit)

Suitable placement of freely placeable marks can improve cutting accuracy. The tool for freely placeable marks can be used to place any number of registration marks at any position.

• Freely placeable registration marks

Two types of freely placeable marks are available: origin marks and other marks. The marks are distributed from the Mimaki website. When preparing your own marks, use the following dimensions.



- Origin registration mark
 - This is the first registration mark detected, and only one can be placed on a figure.
 - Shape: Black 10 mm circle. 1 mm wide 3.5 mm long rectangle extending upward from the center.
 - Line color: Black
 - · Hatching: White



- Other registration mark
 - Shape: Black 10 mm circle.



- **1** Prepare cut data (a DXF file) with freely placeable registration marks in CAD software or the like.
 - CP "DXF Versions"(P. 12)



• For details on the available area for placing cut data and registration marks (spacing, size, etc.), refer to the plotter operation manual.

2 Use a printer to print on the work.



Refer to the printer operation manual.

Load the printed work on the plotter.



• Load the work so that the registration marks are straight horizontally and vertically.



For details on how to load the work and using the plotter, refer to the plotter operation manual.

Attach the tool to be used to the plotter.

5 Detect the origin registration marks with the plotter, which will enter [Remote] mode.



- Configure plotter settings, including the type of registration mark. For details on settings and detection methods, refer to the plotter operation manual. If registration marks cannot be detected, see (2) "If registration marks cannot be detected"(P. 121). Start CAMLINK2. (3) "Starting CAMLINK2"(P. 41) 6 Confirm that your plotter is selected. ^(C) "Checking the current plotter"(P. 44) • If not selected, select your plotter. (P. 45) (Important!) Check the blade type in the CAMLINK2 database. 8 Register a blade if no blade has been registered. I Registering Blades"(P. 52) Import cut data (a DXF file) into CAMLINK2. (27 "Importing Cut Data (DXF Files)"(P. 50) Q Set the cut conditions. Conditions Cut Conditions" (P. 56) Set the output conditions. (Ref "Setting Up Layers" (P. 75) Be sure to configure [Cut Condition] settings for layers you will output (cut). Be sure to set registration marks in [Cut Condition] for the layer to be used for these marks. Registration marks can only be set on one layer. If registration marks have not been placed on the layer they are intended for, execute [Move Layer] for them. 🖙 "If registration marks have not been placed on the intended layer"(P. 78) **12** Set the registration mark shape. ⁽²⁾ "Detecting registration marks"(P. 120)
 - - Select the freely placeable mark.
- **13** Set [Plotter Out] and start cutting. Comparison "Sending to a Plotter" (P. 83)
 - Configure [Register Mark Setting] items. (Register Mark Setting"(P. 87)

5.7 Reverse cutting of printed works (data with registration marks)

If surface cutting does not produce a neat finish or you prefer a different approach, cutting from the reverse side may provide a cleaner finish.



Text data cannot be output.

Reverse cutting can be performed using the following methods.

- Detect two edges and registration marks, then cut from the reverse side.
- Detect registration marks on the surface and then cut before inserting the included black mark chips from the reverse side and cutting from the reverse side.

Check the usage conditions when using the edge detection function. (P. 129)

After cutting with square marks from the surface, insert the included black mark chips from the back side and use them as registration marks. (When not using edge detection)





Cut Condition for reverse cutting

Work Thickness: At least 3 mm

• Works with the thickness described above should be used only with the mark chip method.

Registration marks you can use in reverse cutting

The marks are distributed from the Mimaki website. When preparing your own marks, use the following dimensions.

Registration mark shape

Chapter 5 Applied Functions / Reverse cutting of printed works (data with registration marks)

Square registration mark





Prepare cut data (a DXF file) with registration marks in CAD software or the like.

- CP "DXF Versions"(P. 12)



1

For details on the available area for placing cut data and registration marks (spacing, size, etc.), refer to the plotter operation manual.

2 Use a printer to print on the work.



- Refer to the printer operation manual.
- Continuous registration mark detection and cutting is not possible with reverse cutting.
 - · Registration marks cannot be detected with CAMLINK2 even when placing a series of
 - shapes with registration marks.
 - Text cannot be output when reverse cutting.

3 Load the printed work on the plotter.



• Load the work so that the registration marks are straight horizontally and vertically.



• For details on how to load the work and using the plotter, refer to the plotter operation manual.

Attach the tool to be used to the plotter.

• When edge detection is not used, cut the registration marks before cutting the data. Load a tool capable of cutting out the work together with the output conditions in the plotter first.



• Select the registration mark shape used.

1 3 Set [Plotter Out] settings. ⁽²⁾ "Plotter Out"(P. 83)

• Set [Reverse Cut Mode]. Set the flip direction, for flipping the work horizontally or vertically.

- Reverse Cut Mode				
□♥ Reverse Cut Mode	Flip Direction	1	2	

- Configure [Register Mark Setting] items. (27 "Register Mark Setting"(P. 87)
- For edge detection, configure [Edge Detect] item. (27 "Edge Detect"(P. 86)
- For test cutting, see Try it out (Specifications may be subject to change.) (To be corrected when finalized).

1 4 Click [Start]. Click [Start].

- When using edge detection
- (1) Use the jog keys to move the light pointer to the bottom right corner of the work as instructed on the plotter operating panel, then press the [ENTER] key.
 - Edge detection is performed.
- (2) Use the jog keys to move the light pointer to the registration mark position as instructed on the plotter operating panel, then press the [ENTER] key.
 - Registration mark detection is performed.
 - The plotter returns to [Local] mode.

• When not using edge detection

- · Registration mark detection is performed.
- A cut is made for inserting the mark chip over the registration mark.
- Once the cut is complete, the plotter starts the head retraction operation. The plotter switches to standby state while the head is being retracted.



15 Flip over the work in the set direction as instructed on the plotter operating panel, then press the [ENTER] key.



16 The reverse side edges and mark chips are detected.

• When using edge detection

- Use the jog keys to move the light pointer to the following positions on the work as instructed on the plotter operating panel, then press the [ENTER] key. Cutting starts once edge detection is complete.
- When work is flipped left to right: Bottom left corner
- When work is flipped vertically: Top right corner

• When not using edge detection

- Insert mark chips in the mark cutouts and press the [Enter] key.
- Use the jog keys to move the light pointer to the mark chip position as instructed on the plotter operating panel then press the [ENTER] key.



17 The edges and mark chips are detected by the plotter, and cutting starts.

5.8 Edge detection

The work edges can be detected.

This eliminates the need to enter the work size and enables cutting to be corrected even when the work is skewed.

- Plotter supporting edge detection function
 - CFX Series (with camera unit)
 - · Edge detection can be performed only on works with right angle (90 degree) corners.
 - Check that the corners of the work are not curled up.
 - It may not be possible to detect edges if the corners are curled or dirty.
 - Edge detection may not be possible depending on the work color.

Scenarios where edge detection is used

Edge detection is used in the following cases:

 Surface cutting using data without registration marks (2) "Edge detection and surface cutting using data without registration marks"(P. 129)



• Reverse cutting using data with registration marks ("Reverse cutting of printed works (data with registration marks)" (P. 124)



Edge detection and surface cutting using data without registration marks

Load the work with the surface facing up, then set the work thickness.



Refer to the plotter operation manual.

- **2** Attach the tool to be used to the plotter.
- **3** Start CAMLINK2. (P. 41)
- **A** Confirm that your plotter is selected. (Checking the current plotter"(P. 44)

(montant) • If not selected, select your plotter. (P. 45)



• Register a blade if no blade has been registered. (P. 52)

6 Import cut data (a DXF file) into CAMLINK2. 🖓 "Importing Cut Data (DXF Files)"(P. 50)

- The placement position defines the offset distance from the work edge origin.
- 7 Set the cut conditions. ⁽²⁷⁾ "Setting Cut Conditions"(P. 56)
- Set the output conditions. (Ref "Setting Up Layers"(P. 75)
- **Q** Set [Plotter Out] settings. ⁽²⁾ "Plotter Out"(P. 83)
 - Configure the [Edge Detect] setting items. (27 "Edge Detect"(P. 86)
- **1** Click [Start]. (3) "Sending to a Plotter" (P. 83)
- **11** Use the jog keys to move the light pointer to the bottom right corner of the work as instructed on the plotter operating panel, then press the [ENTER] key.
 - Cutting starts once edge detection is complete.



5.9 V-Cutting

• V-cutting is possible only when the cut data consists of straight lines.



(Important!)

Plotters supporting V-cuttingCFX series: Attach the V-cutting tool.

• CFX series. Attach the v-cutting tool.

The V-cutting tool can be used to create crisp edges at bends when works such as thick corrugated cardboard are bent.



• Types of V-cutting

The following methods of V-cutting are available. Choose the method that suits your application.





Attach the V-cutting tool to the plotter.



• For details on the available area for placing cut data, refer to the plotter operation manual.

2 Set the workpiece and switch to [Remote] mode.



• For details on how to load the work and using the plotter, refer to the plotter operation manual.

3 Prepare cut data (a DXF file) with CAD software or the like.

- Prepare V-cutting data in a separate layer.
- Example: V-cutting data indicated with red lines



A Select a V-cut compatible plotter.

• Changing the current plotter"(P. 45)



Check the blade type in the CAMLINK2 database.

 When using for the first time or if the desired blade is not registered, register a new blade. "Registering Blades"(P. 52)

6 Import cut data (a DXF file) into CAMLINK2

• CP "Importing Cut Data (DXF Files)"(P. 50)

7 Configure the cutting conditions and click [OK]. (2) "Setting Cut Conditions" (P. 56)

- (1) [Base Setting] tab: Set [Tool] to [V Cut]. (2) "Cut Condition > [Base Setting] tab"(P. 59)
 - Configure other items as needed (optional).

Condition	PP	•		Add Condition Copy
Base Setting	Detail Setting Milling	V Cut I]
Station	C Station	<u> </u>		
Tool	V-Cut 45 deg	•		
Outp Order 1 3 4	TestBlade 5 6	Z _{position} Speed Times Cutting Direction 0 10 1 7 8 9 10	Rpm Z-Speed 10 11 12	
13	14	15	16	

- (2) [Detail Setting] tab: Configure setting items as needed (optional). ⁽²⁾ "Cut Condition > [Detail Setting] tab"(P. 62)
- (3) [V Cut]: Configure the setting items. (2) "Cut Condition > [V Cut] tab"(P. 73)

Cut Condition	
-General Conditions	
Condition work5	Add Condition Copy
Base Setting Detail Setting Milling V Cut	
Single Cut Setting	Triple Cut
	3 Output straight lines set to "Double cut" as "Triple cut".
(a) Z Uncut Value (Single) 0 mm	
(b) V Cut Offset (Single) (Auto	Theta correct
C Manual 0 mm	
Double / Triple Cut Setting	
	Theta correct 0 -
(a) Z Uncut Value (Double) 0 mm	
(b) V Cut Offset (Double) (* Auto	
C Manual 0 mm	
ОК	Test Out Cancel



• Select cutting conditions for V-cutting on the V-cutting layer.

```
    If there is no V-cutting layer
    Move the data for V-cutting to a layer for this purpose. Image: "Moving shapes to other layers" (P. 102)
```

9 Specify the cutting direction/number of cuts.

Changing line cutting direction"(P. 110)

10 Check the Preview.

Check the V-cut cut line, direction, and other parameters using Preview before outputting the plot.
 "Preview"(P. 81)

1 Send the data to the plotter.

• @ "Sending to a Plotter"(P. 83)

5.10 Milling

省

Plotters supporting milling functionsCFX series: Attach the milling tool.

Rotating milling tools are used for cutting.

1 Attach the milling tool to the plotter.



• For details on the available area for placing cut data, refer to the plotter operation manual.

2 Set the workpiece and switch to [Remote] mode.



• For details on how to load the work and using the plotter, refer to the plotter operation manual.

3 Select a plotter supporting milling.

• Changing the current plotter"(P. 45)

1 Check the blade type in the CAMLINK2 database.

• Register a blade if no blade has been registered. (P. 52)

5 Import cut data (a DXF file) into CAMLINK2

- CP "Importing Cut Data (DXF Files)"(P. 50)
- The [Set Database] dialog box is displayed.

6 Configure the cutting conditions and click [OK]. ⁽²⁾ "Setting Cut Conditions"(P. 56)

- Cut thickness with [Joint Setting] configured"(P. 70)
 - (1) [Base Setting] tab: Set [Tool] to [Milling]. (2) "Cut Condition > [Base Setting] tab"(P. 59)

General	ion I Conditio									
General	Cut	PP							Add Condition	Copy
Base Se	etting	Detail Setting	Milling V	Cut		<u> </u>				
1 Statio	n [C Station				-				
2 Tool	F	V-Cut 45 deg				•				
	Output	Туре	Press	Z	Speed -	Times Cutting	Rpm	Z-Speed		
	1	TestBlade	-	0	10 1	Directio	-	10		
3	4	5	• 6	7	8	9 10	▼ 11	12		
	13	•	14		1	5	16			

- Configure other items as needed (optional).
- (2) [Detail Setting] tab: Configure setting items as needed (optional). ⁽²⁾ "Cut Condition > [Detail Setting] tab"(P. 62)
- (3) [Milling] tab: Configure the setting items. (3) "Cut Condition > [Milling] tab"(P. 66)

Cut Condition	
General Conditions	
Condition Milling	Add Condition Copy
Base Setting Detail Setting Milling VICut	
Switch the part to be left as the product. OF ON OF	Solin Setting A hode to prevent the work from slipping, leave a part and out it at the end. Joint Length (a) mm Height (b) mm
2 Adjust start / erd Drill Cut	(b)
Finishing Cut	T Hatching
(a) オフセット量 mm	Route Space
Cut outside by offset(a)	Poute Type
レイヤー設定	
Output Order Show Output Color Layer Name	Cut Condition
OK	Test Cut Cancel

7 Configure layer settings. ⁽²⁾ "Setting Up Layers"(P. 75)

8 Send the data to the plotter.

• CP "Sending to a Plotter"(P. 83)



5.11 Toggle Cutting

This function is available on CFX series plotters when an expansion table is connected.

It enables more efficient cutting by dividing the cutting area into two, so that while one area is being cut the other can be prepared for subsequent cutting.

- These divided cutting areas are referred to as Area 1 and Area 2.
- · Separate cut data can be sent to each of the two areas.
- Each area is the same size.



• A CFX plotter can be connected to up to two expansion tables. There will be two cutting areas even when two expansion tables are connected.

Starting cutting in Area 1

Prepare cut data with CAD software.

Activate toggle cutting on the plotter's operating panel.



Refer to the plotter operation manual.

3 Load the workpiece on Area 1.



• For details on how to load the work and using the plotter, refer to the plotter operation manual.

A On the plotter, set the work origin, then enter [Remote] mode.



• Refer to the plotter operation manual.

- **5** Turn on the vacuum for Area 1.
- Start CAMLINK2. (Starting CAMLINK2" (P. 41)
- Confirm that your plotter is selected. (27 "Checking the current plotter"(P. 44)

(montant!) • If not selected, select your plotter. (P. 45)

8 Close all open figures.

9 Use the toggle button in the menu or select [Setup(&S)] > [Toggle Setting] in the CAMLINK2 menu bar.



- 10 Creates a new figure.Make sure the active working space corresponds to the toggle area.
- **1** Check the blade type in the CAMLINK2 database.
 - Register a blade if no blade has been registered. (P. 52)
- 12 Import cut data (a DXF file) into CAMLINK2 and place it in the toggle area. (27 "Importing Cut Data (DXF Files)"(P. 50)
- **13** Set the cut conditions. (P. 56)
- **1 4** Set the output conditions. (P. 75) Setting Up Layers" (P. 75)
- 15 Set [Plotter Out] settings. (2) "Plotter Out"(P. 83)
- 16 Click [Start]. (Construction of the second secon
 - The [Plotter Out] dialog box is displayed.

17 Check the output toggle area and click [OK].

• Cutting now begins in Area 1.



Plotter Out		
Offset x 0 mm Y 0 mm	Output Option Output to file Auto Division Head final position Retton Left X 0 mm	Communication Plotting Area (L) Preview
Vacuum ON auto before output Vacuum OFF auto after output	Y mm	I race Output
Register Mark Setting Image: Not length adjust Repeat Ontinuous spacing 1 10	Output All Shapes with Pen Speed Press Level Edge Detect Edge Detect Corner Edge Detect Process	
Flip Direction	Machine Information	
	Start	Cancel

• Next, cutting begins in Area 2.

• Starting cutting in Area 2

1 Load the workpiece on Area 2.



• For details on how to load the work and using the plotter, refer to the plotter operation manual.

2 On the plotter, set the work origin, then enter [Remote] mode.



Refer to the plotter operation manual.

- **3** Turn on the vacuum for Area 2.
- **A** Creates a new figure.
 - Make sure the active working space corresponds to the toggle area.
- 5 Import cut data (a DXF file) into CAMLINK2 and place it in the toggle area. ⁽²⁾ "Importing Cut Data (DXF Files)"(P. 50)
- **6** Set the cut conditions. C "Setting Cut Conditions"(P. 56)
- 7 Set the output conditions. (Ref "Setting Up Layers"(P. 75)
- **Set** [Plotter Out] settings. (IP "Plotter Out" (P. 83)
- **Q** Click [Start]. (CP "Sending to a Plotter"(P. 83)
 - The [Plotter Out] dialog box is displayed.
- **1 O** Check the output toggle area and click [OK].
 - Cutting now begins in Area 2.

Plotter Out	
Coffset X 0 mm Y 0 mm Yacuum OR auto before output Vacuum OFF auto after output Vacuum OFF auto after output	Output Option Communication Output to file Plotting Area (L) Auto Division Plotting Area (L) Head evacuation after output Preview Head final position Cffset Bottom Left v Y 0 mm Trace Output
Register Mark Setting Image: Setting in the s	Output All Shapes with Pen Speed 10 cm/s Press Level 4 Edge Detect Edge Detect rocess Edge Detect Process Image: Comparison relation Machine Information Image: Comparison relation
	Start Cancel

• If necessary, start the next cutting in Area 1.

Chapter 6 Function Explanation



This chapter This chapter describes menu functions.

File(&F) Menu144	Setup(&S) Menu149
Edit(&E) Menu145	Window(&W) Menu150
View(&V) Menu147	Changing how windows are displayed150
Output(&O) Menu148	Help(&H) Menu152

6.1 File(&F) Menu

• Some menus and icons may not be available (grayed out), depending on figure and shape conditions.

Function	lcon	Description	Shortcut keys
New(&N)	Ð	 Creates a new figure. Multiple figures can be created, but the number of figures you can work with at one time depends on the available computer memory. 	Ctrl+N
Read DXF	DXF	Imports cut data (a DXF file) prepared in CAD software into a figure. 🕾 "Importing Cut Data (DXF Files)"(P. 50)	Ctrl+F
Open(&O)	MDT	Opens a figure saved in MDT2 format (an original CAMLINK2 format). Data (MDT format files) created in CAMLINK cannot be opened.	Ctrl+O
Load(&L)	-	Imports an additional figure saved in MDT2 format (a CAMLINK2 format) into the open drawing.	-
Save(&S)	•	Saves the figure being edited as a file with the same name.	Ctrl+S
Save As(&A)	-	Saves the figure being edited as a file with a different name.	-
Close(&C)	-	Closes the figure being edited. (Closing figures"(P. 43)	-
Print Setup(&U)	-	 Used to specify the printer, paper, and orientation used for output. Full scale: Prints at actual size. Object fit: Scales the <u>shape</u> to your specified paper size and prints it. Work fit: Scales the <u>entire figure</u> to your specified paper size and prints it. 	-
Print(&P)	-	Prints the open figure to the printer selected in [Print Setup].	Ctrl+P
Quit(&X) CAMLINK2	-	 Quits CAMLINK2. I "Quitting CAMLINK2"(P. 42) • [Save changes to File?] is displayed if a figure is open. 	Ctrl+Q
6.2 Edit(&E) Menu

• Some menus and icons may not be available (grayed out), depending on figure and shape conditions.

Function	lcon	Description	Shortcut keys
Undo(&U)	5	Cancels and undoes the last action performed.Only one previous state can be restored.Changing working layers cannot be reverted.	Ctrl+Z
Redo(&R)	¢	Redoes an undone action.Only one action can be redone.	Ctrl+Y
Cut(&T)	of	Cuts the selected shape.	Ctrl+X
Copy(&C)	G	Copies the selected shape.	Ctrl+C
Paste(&P)	Û	 Pastes the copied (or cut) shape. Shapes are pasted to the layer set as the working layer in the [Layer Setting] dialog box. I "Setting Up Layers"(P. 75) Shapes are pasted in the same position (at the same coordinates) as the original copied/cut shape. 	Ctrl+V
Move(&M)	÷	Moves the selected shape. (P. 91)	-
Link Copy(&Y)	•••	Creates a linked copy of a shape, with information in the original and the copy linked. (Ref. "Creating linked copies of shapes/ canceling linkage" (P. 92)	-
Cancel Link Copy	-	Cancels linkage between an original shape and copy, enabling separate editing of cutting conditions etc. (2) "Creating linked copies of shapes/canceling linkage"(P. 92)	-
Rotate(&O)	Q	Rotates the selected shape. (P. 95)	Ctrl+R
Mirror		Flips the selected shape horizontally or vertically. (2) "Horizontally or vertically flipping (mirroring) shapes"(P. 96)	-
Resize(&E)	P	Resizes the selected shape. 🕼 "Resizing shapes"(P. 96)	-
Multi Copy(&I)	Creates your specified number of copies of all shapes on the figure, in your specified direction. (27) "Creating multiple copies of shapes" (P. 98)		-
Delete(&D)	-	Deletes the selected shape.	Del
Select All(&A)	-	Selects all shapes on the figure.	Ctrl+A
Group(&G)		Groups selected shapes into a single shape. I "Grouping/ ungrouping shapes"(P. 99)	Ctrl+G
Ungroup(&N)	5	Ungroups grouped shapes. 🖓 "Grouping/ungrouping shapes"(P. 99)	-
Disassemble the Shape(&V)	-	Disassembles selected shapes into line segments. (2) "Disassembling shapes"(P. 100)	-
Comment Parameters	A	Used to enter text on figures. (P. 100)	Ctrl+T

Chapter 6 Function Explanation / Edit(&E) Menu

Function	lcon	Description	Shortcut keys
Move Layer	-	Moves selected shapes to another layer that you specify. (27) "Moving shapes to other layers"(P. 102)	-
Group by layer	-	Groups shapes together by layer. (27 "Grouping by layers"(P. 102)	-
Doubleline check	-	Remove double lines (double lines) to reduce the number of extra cuts. The "Doubleline check"(P. 103)	-

6.3 View(&V) Menu

• Some menus and icons may not be available (grayed out), depending on figure and shape conditions.

	Function	lcon	Description	Shortcut keys
Gı	id(&G)	-	 Displays a grid with your specified pitch. If "Showing/ canceling the grid"(P. 104) A "G" (for "grid") in the upper left of the figure indicates that the grid is enabled. 	-
Zo	oom In(&I)	Ð	 Magnifies the figure. Operation Click: Doubles image magnification, centered on the clicked position. Drag: Magnifies the area of the figure you drag. To cancel zooming in/out Right-click to cancel. 	-
Zo	oom Out(&O)	Q	 Reduces the figure. Operation Click: Reduces image magnification to 2/3, centered on the clicked position. Drag: Reduces display by an amount calculated from the area you drag. To cancel zooming in/out Right-click to cancel. 	-
AI	I Shape(&S)	D	Magnifies all shapes in the layout to fit the screen size.	Ctrl+H
W Sp	ork bace(&W)	٥	Displays the entire working area or active working space. If work size settings have not been set, the active working space is displayed.	Ctrl+M
Re	edraw	-	Refreshes figure display.	F5
M So	ove creen(&M)	-	Moves the screen.	-
	Point(&P)	0	Moves the screen by a distance corresponding to source and destination points you click on the figure. You can also specify source and destination coordinates in the coordinate panel.	-
	Left(&L)	-	Moves the screen left.	+
	Right	-	Moves the screen right.	→
	Up(&U)	-	Moves the screen up.	Ť
	Down(&D)	-	Moves the screen down.	¥

6

6.4 Output(&O) Menu

• Some menus and icons may not be available (grayed out), depending on figure and shape conditions.

Function	lcon	Description	Shortcut keys
Plotter Out(&P)	<u></u> ₽ CUT	Sends figure data with your specified cutting conditions to a plotter. (Figure 1.1) "Sending to a Plotter" (P. 83)	-
Shapes Order(&O)	-	Used to check the output order for grouped shapes. (P "Changing/resetting grouped shape output order"(P. 108)	-
Initially Order(&I)	-	Restores grouped shapes to the state after importing. "Changing/resetting grouped shape output order"(P. 108)	-
Line Order(&L)	-	Changes the output order for line segments. (Ref "Changing line segment output order"(P. 109)	-
Line Direction(&V)	-	Changes the cutting direction/number of cuts (only for V-cut compatible plotters) for line segments. (Ref. "Changing line cutting direction"(P. 110)	-
Line Division(&D)	-	Divides line segments and cuts from the opposite end. (2) "Dividing line segments"(P. 111)	-
Cutting Start Position(&T)	-	Changes where line segment cutting begins. (Changing the cutting start position"(P. 112)	-
Send a Spool File(&F)	-	Sends data saved in Plot Command File Format (*.PLT, IPlotter Out"(P. 83)) to a plotter.	-

6.5 Setup(&S) Menu

• Some menus and icons may not be available (grayed out), depending on figure and shape conditions.

Function	lcon	Description	Shortcut keys
Detect Mark/Exit Detection	E E	Starts or stops detection of registration marks. (2) "Detecting registration marks" (P. 120)	-
Work Size/ Remove Work Space(&W)	۲	For configuring the shape and size of the space for your work.	Ctrl+W
Cut Condition(&D)	-	For setting cut conditions to suit the work material and other details. (Ref. 56)	Ctrl+D
Environment(&V)	-	For configuring tool settings. Plotters can be set when a figure is not open. ⁽²⁾ "Configuring the environment"(P. 35)	-
Set Database(&A)	-	Blades and cut condition names can be registered in the database. (Registering Blades" (P. 52)	-
Database Backup(&B)	-	 Manually backs up the database. Specify a destination folder and enter a file name. Click [Save]. Selecting a folder that already contains backup files will overwrite the files. If you prefer not to overwrite files, be sure to select a different folder. For details on automatic database backup, see "Database Backup" in the following section. Image "[Environment Setup] > [Other] tab"(P. 40) 	-
Layer Setting	-	For changing the working layer and actions such as naming, renaming, and deleting layers. (P. 75)	Ctrl+L
Toggle Setting	1	Divides the cutting area into two to improve cutting efficiency. Toggle Cutting"(P. 138)	-

6.6 Window(&W) Menu

Ť.

• Some menus and icons may not be available (grayed out), depending on figure and shape conditions.

Function	lcon	Description	Shortcut keys
Cascade(&C)	-	Displays all open figures as a cascaded stack of figures. (2) "Changing how windows are displayed"(P. 150)	-
Tile(&H)	-	Arranges all open windows for viewing at the same time. "Changing how windows are displayed"(P. 150)	-
Arrange Icons(&A)	-	Arranges icons to the lower left (only applies to minimized figures). (Arranging how windows are displayed"(P. 150)	-
Figure names	-	The names of all open figures are listed at the bottom of the menu. Click a figure name to access the figure.	-

Changing how windows are displayed

Change figure window display as follows.

• Cascaded display

To display all open figures as a cascaded stack of figures, select [Window(&W)] > [Cascade(&C)].



• Tiled display

You can arrange all open windows for viewing at once. For tiled display of all open figures, select [Window(&W)] > [Tile(&H)].

CAM LINK2	- 🗆 ×
File(E) Edit(E) View(y) Output(Q) Setup(S) Window(y) Help(H)	
(+) ∞ 🛅 🛅 (+) < < < < < < < < < < < < < < < < < < <	
GL Figure4	2
	<u>م</u>
י פא' ישי' פע' י ס' י פע' י פע' י שי' י שי' י פע' י שי נער י פע' י ס' י פע' י ס' י פע' י שי	' '80 ' '100 ' '120 '
G Figure 3	
oor' ' oe' ' o' '` ' oor' ' oe' ' oe' ' oe' ' oe' ' oe' ' o' '	' '150 ' '200
CAM LINK2 X:240.88Y:17.04	

• Icons arranged in the lower left (only applies to minimized figures)

To align icons to the bottom left, select [Window(&W)] > [Arrange lcons(&A)].



• Displaying your preferred figure in front

The names of all open figures are listed at the bottom of the menu when you click the [Window(&W)] menu. Click a figure name to display that figure in front.

6.7 Help(&H) Menu

Function	lcon	Description	Shortcut keys
CAMLINK2 Info(&A)	-	Shows CAMLINK2 version information.	-
Manual	-	Shows a URL where the manual is available.	-

Chapter 7 Troubleshooting



This chapter This chapter provides troubleshooting tips.

Troubleshooting by case example	154
Files cannot be imported, or the datab	base
cannot be opened	154
CAMLINK2 does not start	154
Cannot send data to a plotter	154
Forgot to deactivate the license	154
Lost the serial key	154

How to deactivate the license if the compute	r
fails	.155
Uninstallation	.156
Deactivating the license	.156
Deactivation from the [License activation]
menu	.156
When the CAMLINK2 computer has no	
internet access	.157
Uninstallation	.160

Chapter 7 Troubleshooting / Troubleshooting by case example/Files cannot be imported, or the database cannot be opened

7.1 Troubleshooting by case example

If an issue persists even after you take the corrective action, contact your local dealer or our service office.

Files cannot be imported, or the database cannot be opened

• Restart CAMLINK2. ⁽²⁾ "Starting CAMLINK2"(P. 41)

CAMLINK2 does not start

• Run the Windows Task Manager and see if CAMLINK2 is running. If CAMLINK2 is running, the CAMLINK2 window might be displayed outside the viewable area of your monitor.

Cannot send data to a plotter

- Make sure the plotter is correctly connected to your computer.
- Confirm that [Default plotter] is set to the plotter you will use. ⁽²⁾ "[Environment Setup] > [Plotter] tab"(P. 36)
- If a transmission error occurs, restart CAMLINK2. (P. 41),

Forgot to deactivate the license

You can activate the license as many times as you wish on the first computer where you activated the license, unless you activate the license on another computer.

• To use CAMLINK2 on the same computer

- (1) Reinstall CAMLINK2.
- (2) Start the license activation and enter the same serial key.
 - The license is reactivated. CP "License Activation"(P. 19)

To use CAMLINK2 on a different computer

- (1) Deactivate the license online.
 - CP "How to deactivate the license if the computer fails"(P. 155)
- (2) Install CAMLINK2 on another computer.
- (3) Start the license activation and enter the serial key for the license you deactivated in step (1).
 - (3) "License Activation"(P. 19)

Lost the serial key

- The serial key has been lost
 - The license key will be displayed after you deactivate and reactivate the license. Make a note of the license key displayed.
- · After I deactivated the license, I realized I didn't have a serial key
 - The computer will retain serial key information provided the [Delete the serial key information] check box on the [Deactivation] screen is unchecked when deactivating the license.



- Details on [Delete the serial key information]
- If unchecked (default):
- The license is deactivated while keeping serial key information. When the license is reactivated, it will be displayed as originally entered.
- If checked:
- All serial key information is deleted.

7.2 How to deactivate the license if the computer fails

If you cannot follow the normal license deactivation process and use CAMLINK2 on another computer, you can deactivate the license as follows.

If you can use the normal license de-activation process, do not use this function. CAMLINK2 may not be able to work properly.
 "Deactivating the license"(P. 156)

• Open a web browser and visit the following page.

- http://miws.mimaki.jp/license/agencytop.aspx
- The license activation screen appears.
- **2** Click [Deactivation (When the PC broken)].
- 3 In the serial-key-entry form, enter the serial key for the activated license.

Click [Deactivation].

• The deactivation of the license is now completed.

7.3 Uninstallation

When CAMLINK2 is no longer needed or you wish to install it on another computer, deactivate the license before uninstalling CAMLINK2.

• Unless you deactivate the license first, you will not be able to activate the license when installing CAMLINK2 on another computer, which will prevent you from using CAMLINK2.

Deactivating the license

• How to deactivate your license

The license can be deactivated as follows.

- On a computer connected to the internet
 - (P. 156) "Deactivation from the [License activation] menu" (P. 156)
- On a computer not connected to the internet
 - (IP "When the CAMLINK2 computer has no internet access"(P. 157)

Deactivation from the [License activation] menu

From the Windows [Start] menu, select [All apps] > CAMLINK2] > [License Activation].

2 Click [Next].

- The software connects to the server to deactivate the license.
- If using a proxy server, this will need configuring. (3) "When using a proxy server" (P. 21)

 Details on [Delete the serial key information]
 If unchecked (default): The license is deactivated while keeping serial key information. When the license is reactivated, it will be displayed as originally entered.
 If checked: All serial key information is deleted. Click [Complete].

Deactivation	-	×
Welcome to Mimaki Web Servic	е	
]
Product successfully deactivated.		
Finish		

When the CAMLINK2 computer has no internet access

1 From the Windows [Start] menu, select [All apps] > CAMLINK2] > [License Activation].

Welcome to Mimaki Web Service
Deactivate.
Deactivate via the Internet
Internet access option Substitute deactivation.
Next Carr

3 Click [Browse].

2

Welcome to Mimaki Web Ser	vice
Substitute deactivation Substitute deactivation	Browse

4 Specify a storage location and name for the file to save.

← → · · ↑ 🔜 → This PC → Documents · L	cense v Ö	P Search Lie	cense
Organize 🔻 New folder			III - (
This PC Name	No items match y	Date modified	Туре
Desktop			
🗄 Documents 🗸 <			
File name: Deactivation.xm			
File name Deactivation.xml Save as type: XML File (*.xml)			_

5 Click [Save].

6 Click [Next].

• The deactivation file is created.

Deactivation	-	
Welcome to Mimaki Web Service		
Deactivate.		
		 ٦
Substitute deactivation		
Substitute deactivation		
C#Users¥admin¥Documents¥License¥Deactivation.xml	Browse	
Poleto the social law information		

7 Click [Complete].

🤣 Deactivation	-	×
Welcome to Mimaki Web Service		
Deactivation file has been successfully created. Please access the Web License Page on internet browsable PC, and deactivate with this deactivation file to complete deactivation process.		
Frish		

1

• Keep the deactivation file in a safe place. If you lose the file before license deactivation, you will be unable to use CAMLINK2 on another computer.

Deactivating the license

Access the following URL to display the activation page.

http://miws.mimaki.jp/license/agencytop.aspx

2 Click [Deactivation].

Activation	
If you have the activation fil Activation.	e by Substitute License
Activation	
Deactivation	
If you have the deactivation Deactivation.	file by Substitute License
Deactivation	
Deactivation (When the PO	C broken)
Can not deactivation because RasterLink/MPM/Simple PC	e the PC running DP is broken.
Deactivation (When the PC broken)	
(When the PC broken)	J

3 Click [Select File].



4 Select the license deactivation file you created and click [Open].

• Creating the deactivation file"(P. 157)

💽 Open					×
← → ~ ↑	« Documents > License		~ Ö	P Search License	e
Organize 👻 Ne	w folder			122	• 🔳 🔞
This PC	^ Name	^		Date modified	Туре
3D Objects	C Deactivation.x	nl		8/29/2023 9:22 AN	1 Mic psoft
E Desktop					
🗧 Documents					
🖶 Downloads	~ <				>
	File name: Deactivation.xm	ıl	~	All files (*.*)	~
				Open	Cancel

5 Click [Deactivation].

• The license is deactivated.



Uninstallation



• Uninstall the software as a user with administrator privileges.

 Uninstalling the software will clear all CAMLINK2 settings. Before uninstalling, confirm the following.

(1) CAMLINK2 is not running.

- (2) The CAMLINK2 database is not open.
- (3) The license for CAMLINK2 has been deactivated.

In the Windows [Start] Menu, click [Settings].

2 Click [Apps] > [Apps & features].

3 Select [CAMLINK2] in the [Apps & features] list, and then click [Uninstall].

Click [Uninstall].

4

- Uninstallation starts.
- If you have not deactivated the license, the screen to prompt you to do so appears. When you click [Yes], the [Deactivation] screen appears. ^(CP) "Deactivating the license"(P. 156)
 - If you click [No], uninstallation continues without license deactivation.

5 Click [Complete].

Index

Α

Active Working Space	
Add	
Add Layer	
All Shape	147
Arrange Icons	150
Auto Division	

В

Baud rate	. 37
Blade	9, 62

С

CAMLINK DB folder	
CAMLINK2 Information	152
Cancel Link Copy	145
Canceling shape selection	
Cascade	150
Cell for selecting the row	59
Circle Theta correct	64, 74
Close	144
Column	
Comment Parameters	145
Communication	
Connection Plotter	
Coordinate panel	
Сору	145
Square registration mark	120
Correction	53, 84
Cut	145
Cut Condition	56, 62, 77, 149
Cutting Direction	60, 81, 136
Cutting Order	
Cutting Start Position	148

D

Data bits	
Database Backup	
Default plotter	
Delete	

lete Layer	77
tect Mark	149
ameter	53
assemble the Shape	145
play Setting	81
ubleline check	146
wn	147

Edge Detect	. 84
Edge Detect Corner	. 86
Edge Detect Process	. 86
End Position	81
Environment	149
Exit Detection	149

Е

Figure names	150
Freely placeable registration mark	120

F

G

Grid	. 147
Grid mark	29
Group	. 145
Group by layer	. 102

Н

Head evacuation after output	84
Height	53
Horizontal	83

I

Initially Order	148
Inner/outer registration mark	120
IP Address	. 37

L

ayer	
Color	76
ayer Name	77
ayer output order	
Down	77
Up	77
ayer Setting	49

Index

Left	147
Line Direction	148
Line Division	148
Line Order	148
Link Copy	145
Link Copy Numbers:	98
Link Copy Times:	98
Load	144

Μ

Machine information	57
Menu bar	29
Message area	29
Milling	66, 135
Min Arc Radius	62
Min Diameter	62
Minimum Straight Line	53
Mirror	145
Model	
Move	81, 145
Move Layer	146
Move Screen	147
Multi Copy	145

Ν

Name	53
New	144
Number of cut for small circle	64

0

Offset	
Offset X	
Offset Y	
Flute Direction	
Open	144
Origin	
Output All Shapes with Pen	
Output layer	
Output Order	
Output to file	
Over Cut	

Parity	
Paste	145
Plotter Out	
Plotter communication port	
Plotting area	
Point	
Port	
Pressure	
Pressure (Press Level)	
Preview	
Print	
Print Setup	

Q

Quit

R

Read DXF 14	44
Redo14	45
Register mark	
Detections for the second and subsequent times	87
Continuous mode	87
Continuous spacing	87
Detections for first time	87
Length adjust	87
Mill end mode	87
Repeat	87
Register Mark Setting	33
Rename Layer	77
Repeated cutting 60, 6	61
Resize 14	45
Reverse Cut Mode 8	33
Right 14	47
Rotate	45
Rpm 60, 13	36
Rulers	29

S

14
44
29
45
48
49

Index

Setting for output	40
Setting for reading DXF	40
Shape Size	
Shapes Order	148
Show layer	
Show Original	81
Simulation	81
Space X	
Space Y	
Speed	60, 63
Start Position	81
Station	62
Stop bit	

Т

Tile	
Times	
Toggle Setting	
Tool	59, 62, 136
Tool attachment	
Tool Position	
Tool Setting	
Toolbar	
Total	
Trace Output	
Triple Cut	
Туре	

U

Undo	
Ungroup	
Uninstallation	
Up	
Use XON/XOFF parameters	

V

/ Cut	131
/ Cut Offset	, 74
/ Cut Path	. 81
/acuum setting	. 83
/-cut tool angle	. 74
/ertical	. 83

W

/idth	53
/ork Size	149
/ork Space1	147
/ork Thickness	60
/orking area	98
/orking layer	76

Ζ

Z Position	59, 61
Z setting procedure	
Z Uncut Value	
Z Uncut Value and V Cut Offset	
Zoom In	147
Zoom Out	147
Z-Speed	60, 136

CAMLINK2 ReferenceGuide

March,2025

MIMAKI ENGINEERING CO.,LTD. 2182-3 Shigeno-otsu, Tomi-shi, Nagano 389-0512 JAPAN

D203660-13-31032025



